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Reviewed By: G. Reyes

Attorneys of Record for Plaintiff, ALEXANDRA ROSE

RAISMAN, an mdividual

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

ALEXANDRA ROSE RAISMAN, an
ndividual.

Plaintiff,
v.

UNITED STATES OLYMPIC COMMITTEEL,
a Business Entity of form unknown; USA
GYMNASTICS, an Indiana Business Entity of
Form Unknown; LARRY NASSAR, an
individual, STEVE PENNY, an individual,
PAUL PARRILILA, an individnal, and DOES

1 through 500.

Defendants.

!
.
|

Chaanlis 18CV323989

Judge:
Department:

COMPLAINT FOR DAMACES FOR:

1)
2)

SEX)UAL HARASSMENT (C.C. §

51.9);

MASHA’S LAW (18 U.S.C. §§2255,

2423(b), 2423(c))

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF

EMOTIONAL DISTRESS;

UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES

(CAL. BUS. & PROJ. CODE §17200);

BREACH OF FIDUCJARY DUTY;

CONSTRUCTIVE FRAUD;

NEGLIGENCE;

NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION

NEGLIGENT RETENTION/

HIRING;

10) NEGLIGENT FAILURE TO
WARN;

11) GENDER VIOLENCE (C.C. §52.4);

12) SEXUAL BATTERY.

[Filed pursuant to C.C.P. §340.1]
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL.

COMES NOW, Plaintiff ALEXANDRA ROSE RAISMAN (hereinafter referred to as

“Plaintiff” or “ALY RAISMAN") who complains and alleges as folJows:
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS AS TO THE PARTIES

I This casc arises from the serial molestation, sexual abuse and harassment of ALY
RAISMAN, three-time Olympic gold medalist, by her trusted team physician and former Olympic
Team Doctor Defendant Lawrence “Larry” Gerard Nassar (“NASSAR™), while ALY RAISMAN
was a young girl and woman, competing for the honor of her country. These molestations of the
Plaintiff occurred over several continents, on numerous occasions, and could have been prevented,
had Defendants USA Gymnastics (“USAG”), the United States Olympic Committee (“USOC”) or
tormer president of USAG, Defendant STEVE PENNY (“PENNY”) had taken the mandatc of
ALY RAISMAN’s safety, and numerous other minors in their care, seriously. Despite having
knowledge that NASSAR had been sexually abusive towards minor, been left in solitary contact
with minor girls, and having been notified that NASSAR was a pcdophile (or could have leamed
of such through reasonable diligence), Defendants USAG, USOC, PENNY and DOES ! through
500 instcad put their quest for money and medals, above the safety of the Plaintiff and other minor
competitive athletes; athietes who were responsible for the financial success and prosperity of
those Defendants. The Plaintiff, ALY RAISMAN, began her gymnastics carcer at the tender age
of two (2) years old, and gained her inspiration from watching and re-watching a VHS tape of the
“Magnificent Scven” at the 1996 Olympics held in Atlanta, Georgia and who won the Women'’s
Team Final. Since that time, ALY RAISMAN dedicated her childhood to the pursuit of honoring
that legacy, competing in the Olympics, and winning a gold medal for her country. The Plaintiff
accomplished this monumental goal by the age of eightcen (18) years old, all while being serially
molested by her confidant and trusted physician, NASSAR, under the watch of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY and DOES 1 through 500.

2. Despite having the power, authority, and mandate to do so, the Dcfendants USAG,
USOC, PENNY and DOES 1 through 500 never intervened to disciplinc Defendant NASSAR,
never cnsured that Defendants (JSAG and NASSAR were following Defendant USOC rules and
mandates, and through the cxpress disregard for the safety of minors, allowed Defcndant NASSAR
to continue in his position of trust, power and access to ALY RAISMAN, as well as numerous
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other elite minor athletcs who competed with ALY RAISMAN. After Detendant NASSAR was
only finally removed from his position at USAG, he continued to sexually abuse minors in his role
as a physician for over a year.

3. To this day, ALY RAISMAN continues ta suffer depression, anxiety and fear
steruning from her abuse by Defendant NASSAR, which affects her daily life, including but not
limited to the Plaintiff not trusting medical professionals, not trusting adult malcs, and constantly
suftering from feelings of fear, anxicty, and depression. Jn addition to this psychojogical and
physical trauma suffered by ALY RAISMAN, the Plaintiff continued to train for years in pain,
believing that Defendant NASSAR was properly treating her physical ailments associated with her
sport. When she was young, ALY RAISMAN always felt guilty for thinking NASSAR was weitd,
and questioned why she did not like the purported best rymnastics doctor in the world, though she
did not understand the purported medical treatment she was receiving, at that time, was sexual
abuse. Upon lcarning that this was not legitimate treatment, the Plaintiff suffered further
humiliation, guilt, shame, and disgust.

THE PLAINTIFF
ALY RAISMAN

4. The Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN is now a young adult female who currently resides
in the State of Massachusetts, who was born on May 25, 1994. The Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN was
formerly an elite minor gymnast who wus sexually abused by NASS AR believing this was medical
treatment, while competing in National and Intemationa! Compctitions, including but not limiied
to competitions in California, Jupan, the Karolyi Ranch in Huntsville, Tcxas (and other locations
across the United States and internationally, including in Europe, Asia and Australia) (hat were
hosted, sanctioned. supervised, and/or endorsed by, under the supervision ol chartered, and/ot
under the mandate of Defendants USAG, USOC, and DOES | through 500. During many of thesc
cvents, the Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, and DOES 1 through 500, took care, custndy and
control of Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and stood in loco parentis with her and her parents.
Defendants USOC, PENNY and USAG had 4 duty to protect ALY RAISMAN from known or

foreseeable dangers, such as Defendant NASSAR, and to promptly investigate, censure, discipline

A
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and/or remove Defendant NASSAR; and/or take remedial actions; actions they never took until
after the cessation of ALY RAISMANs abuse.

< The Plaintiff was an elitc level gymnast and member of Team USA who competed
and trained in Nationa) and International competitions on hehalf of the United States. These
National and Intemational competitions and trainings occurred in places including, but not limited
to: Santa Clara County in California, the “Karolyi Ranch” located in Huntsville, Texas and other
locations across the United States and intcrmationally, including the most elite competitions
occurred in Asia, Australia, and Europe. During many of these competitions, the Plaintift was
subjected to sexual harassment, sexual assault, scxual abuse and molestation by Defendant
NASSAR, including but not limited to competitions and trainings that occurred in Santa Clara
County in California, at the Karolyi Ranch in Huntsville, Tcxas, in Japan, and other locations
across the United States and internationally, including Europe and Australia. The Plaintiff was
sexually abused on numecrous occasions and at numcrous locations in or around 2010 through in
or around 2012, and in 2015. This sexual abuse of the Plaintiff occurred at cvents where
Detendants USAG, USOC, PENNY and DOES 1 through 500 were responsible to supervise the
Plaintiff, ensure proper medical procedures and protocols were followed, warn the Plaintiff of
known dangers, and to provide for her salety.

6. This action is brought pursvant to Code of Civil Procedure §340.1, which governs
the statutes of limitations arising from childhood sexual abuse. As a victim of childhood sexual
abuse, and a young adult under the age of 26 years old, thus, ALY RAISMAN’s action is imcly.

DEFENDANTS
DEFENDANT, UNITED STATES OLYMPIC COMMITTEE (“USOC”)

7 Defendant USOC, at all times mentioned herein, was and is a business entity of
form unknown, having its principal place of business in the State of Colorado and is headquancred
in Colorado Springs, Colorado. The USOC is a [ederally chattered nonprofit corporation, which
was reorganized by the Ted Stcvens Amatcur Sports Act, originally enacted in 1978. As advertised
on its website, “[t]he USOC has two primary responsibilitics io its oversight of Olympic and

Paralympic sport in the United States. The firstis to generate resources in support of its mission,
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which is to help American athletes achieve sustained competitive excellence. The second is to
cnsure organizational rcsources are wisely and effectively used to that end.” Furthenmore,
Defendant “...USOC is committed to creating a safe and positive enviropmeot for athletes’
physical, emotional and social developmest and to ensuring that it promotes an environment
free of misconduct.” Under the Ted Stevens Amateur Sports Act, 36 U.S.C. §§220501, ef seq.
(hereinafler, “Ted Stevens Act”) Defendant USOC had a mandatory obligation to ensure that
before granting NGBs, including USAG, a sanction to host National or [ntcrnational events, that
they provide “proper mecdical supervision will be provided for athletes who will participate
in the competition.” 36 US C. §§220525(b)(4)(E).

3. For in or around 2011 through the cessation of the Plaintiff’s sexual abuse by
Defendant NASSAR, the “Karolyi Ranch” was designated as being the United States® Olympic
Training Center, thus, was required to follow all protocols, mandates, policies, bylaws, rules,
and/or practices of Defendant USOC (as well as Defendant USAG).

9. During all relevant times during ALY RAISMAN’s abuse, Defendant USOC was
responsible for ensuring that the Karolyi Ranch, provided adequate supervision for the minors
competing thereat, reasonable safety protocols ensuring the safety of those minors, and reasonable
supervision, training, and oversight procedures for all medical care provided to gymnasts at the
Karolyi Ranch, including training of staff on identification of sexual abuse, proper procedurcs, use
of proper medical care, and staffing of ample medical personnel to ensure proper care of all minor
gymnasts, including the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN. Despite these duties under the law, Defendant
USOC implemented virtually no safety protocols or procedures at the Karolyi Ranch, and tailed
to provide any supervision for minor gymnasts training at the Karolyi Ranch.

10. At all times relevant to the Plaintiff’s sexual abuse at the hands of NASSAR,
Defendant USOC: was responsible for the Plaintiff’s supervision while competing at the Olympics,
the Olympic Trials, and the World Artistic Gymnastics Championships and trainings for such.
Despite being the body responsible for the Plaintiff's safety during thesc events, including, being
responsible for her supervision, medical carc, and well-being, Defendant USOC provided entirely

inadequate or etfective measures to ensure her protection from the risk of sexual abuse, either at
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the events orin her living quarters, where sexual abuse by NASSAR occurred. Despite competing
in Australia, Japan, the United Kingdom and the Netherlands (among other international sites), the
Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN was either provided no supervision while medicat treaiment was
performed in her living quarters by NASSAR or USAG employee Debbie Van Hom was present
for such treatment. Bascd on infonmation, and therefore beljef, despite Ms. Van Hom being
represented as a qualified medical professional, she was not properly trained to supervise
NASSAR, not given mandate to do so, and was otherwise present for sexually abusive treatments
that NASSAR would perform, without reporting such to law enforcement or the proper authoritics.
This ts how and why NASSAR was allowed solitary access to these minors, including the Plaintiff
ALY RAISMAN, or altematively, was allowed to abuse mipors (such as the Plaintiff) in the
presence of USAG staff (Ms. Van Hom).

1. In 2010, during the Plaintiff ALY RATSMAN’s sexual abuse at the hands of
NASSAR, Defendant USOC convened what it termed the “Working Group for Safe Training
Environments” in order to address, among many things, physical and sexnal abuse of amatcur
athletes in National Govermning Bodies (“NGB™). It was not until 2011, afler this commission met,
that Defendant USOC hired an individual to head its “SafeSport” program and not until 2012 that
a “SafeSport” Handbook was adopted and promulgated safeguards and safcty protections for
minor athletes, from the ravages of sexual abuse. Despite only instituting these SafeSport policies
in 2012, Defendant USOC was acutely aware of the ravages of sexual abuse posed to minors in
amateur sports, for at lcast a decade prior to this SafeSport program being created, as they
were informed by former Defendant USAG President, Robert “Bob' Colarossi. See infra.

12.  As a rcquirement for NGBs, such as Defendant USAG, to remain in “good
standing” with Detendant USOC, Defendant USOC policies require that USAG *...1) comply with
the safe sport policies of the corporation and with the policies and procedures of the independent
safe sport organization designated by the corporation to enhance safe sport practices and to
investigate and resolve safe sport violations (no €xceptions to this requirement shall be aflowed
unless granted by the CEQ, or his or her designee, after allowing the [NGB] or PSO to present the

reasons for such exception)...” The Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges,
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that the Sale Sport program was introduced in or around 2011, and that such policies have become

more stringent over the years. Nevertheless, the Defendant USOC continued to fail to adequately
enforce these policies against Defendant NASSAR, and has continually failed to uphold said
policies (hrough proper reporting, supervision, mandates on NGBs (including Defendant USAG),
and other preventative procedures. Cven as the SateSport policies stale today herein, Defendant
USOC still failed to uphold these policies and proccdures, had they been in-place at the
commencement of ALY RAISMAN's sexual abuse. Defendant USOC has and had a culture and
atmosphere that conceals known and suspected sexual abusers, which transcends all policies and
procedures that arc sct in-place. For this reason, Defendant USOC has a practice and culture of
ignoring its own internal rules and mandates for NGBs, in arder to protect its reputation and blind
itsclf to known abusers within the ranks of NGBs for which it is responsible.

13.  Moreover, the Defendant UUSOC currently promulgates the SafeSport policies that
prevent “...USOC cmployees, coaches, contracted staff, volunteers, board inembers, committee
and task force members, and other individuals working with athletes or other sport participants
while at an OTC, whether or not they arc emplayees of the USOC” and “...[a]thlctes training
and/or residing at a USOC Olympic Training Center” from engaging in sexually abusjve
misconduct, including “child sexual abuse” and “sexual misconduct.” See USOC Safe Sport
Policjes, Section 1l(c). SafeSport policy also has policics for identifying “grooming” behaviors,
which it defines as, “.,.the most common strategy used by offenders to seduce their victims.”

14.  Subsequent to sometime in 2012, Plaintiff is informed and believes and on that
basis alleges that these policies (or prior versions that were similar or less restrictive) were in effect
at Detendant USOC, and applied to Defendant USAG. Despite the existence of these policies after
2012, Defendant USOC allowed Defendant NASSAR to continue to participate with minor
children at Defendant USAG, the NGB for Women’s Gymnastics, and tailed to adeguately enforcc
these policies, or mandate that Defendant USAG enforce these policies. Due to its systemic and
knowing failurc to enforce these policics, the Plaintiff was sexually harassed, abused, and molested
by Defendant NASSAR; an individual who was subject to these policies. Plaintiff is informed, and

on that basis, believes that Defendant USAG was at all times in “good standing” with Defendant

gk
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USOC, despite failing to adhere to, and cnforce the SafeSport policies, which it violated by
allowing Defendant NASSAR access to minor gymsasts, including the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN.
Furthermore, in failing to report suspected child abuse of Defendant NASSAR and/or failing to
enforce policics and proceduces to prevent said scxual abuse of minors, the Defendant USOC
prevented the Plaintiff and her parents from avoiding the scxual abuse of the Plaintiff and/or
ceasing 1t sooner.

15. Further, Detendant USOC was required to ensure that NGBs, including Defendant
USAG, ensure that “proper safety precautions have beca taken to protect the personal welfarc
of the athletics and spectators at the competition.” 36 U S.C. §§220525(b)(4)(F). Moreover, as
patt of an NGB’s mandate from the Defendant USOC, it was to, “encourage and support
research, developnient, and dissemination of information in the areas of sports medicine and
sports safety.” 36 U.S.C. §220524(9). Had Defendant USOC performed its mandatc rcasonably,
diligently, and in accord with its duty to protect minor children under both Federal and California
Law, Defendunt NASSAR would have been investigated, sanctioned, and/or rcmoved from
Defendants USAG, USOC, and others, and never have been placed in solitary contact with the
Plaintiff. Defendant USOC never adequalcly or reasonably enforced thesce policies, thus, the sexual
abuse perpetrated by Defendant NASSAR on the Plaintiff] as well as hundreds of other minor girls,
was a natural, probablc and fureseeable outgrowth of Defendant USOC's dereliction ot its duties.
Defendant USOC willfully blinded itself and its officers, agents, employees, and scrvanis, to
ruvages of sexual abuse that were rampant in arpateur sports and in organizations for which it was
responsihle to supervise, including Defendant USAG.

16. In March of 2017, under the United States Senale Judiciary Committee’s inquiry
into the failure of the Defendants USAG and USQOC in protecling gymnasts from sexual assault,
specifically centered around Defendant NASSAR, the Defendant USOC's president publicly
admitled, “[t]he Olympic community failed the people it was supposed to protect.”

17. Plaintiff is informed, and believes, and on that basis alleges that Defendant USOC
was awarg, at the highest levels of its organization, that Defendant NASSAR had molested

Olympian and National Team level gymnasts who participated with Defendant USAG, an NGB
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under Defendant USOC’s charter, while Defendant NASSAR was permitted to return to his
medical practice at Michigan State University (“MSU”) without MSU being warned, advised or
otherwise contacted by Defendants USOC or USAG regarding Defendant USOC's knowledge of
NASSAR’s sexual abuse of elite, minor gymnasts. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that
basis alleges that despite having actual knowledge of Defendant NASSAR’s molestation of minor
gymnasts as early as 2015, Dcfendant USOC concealed their involvement with Defendant USAG,
concealed its knowledge of Defendant NASSAR’s sexual misconduct with minor children, and
ultimately, misdirected the United States Senate into believing that Defendant USOC had only
failed to protect minor gymnasts through lack of oversight. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and
on that basis alleges, that Defendant USOC knew that NASSAR had been removed from
Delendant USAG for allegations of child molestation as early as 2015 (as it was Defendant
USOC’s custom and practice to necessarily leamn of reports of child molestation by a NGB
employee, like thosc made to Defendant USAG in 2015) given that Defendant USOC was
responsible for the supervision of Defendant UUSAG. Nonetheless, Defendant UUSOC had
representatives present al the March 2017 Senate Judiciary Cormunittee Hearing and concealed their
prior knowledge of Defendant NASSAR being a pedophile and sexual abuser; leaving the
Senators, those present, and the public with the false impression that Defendant USOC simply
fasled to implement proper procedures to prevent abusc. During this hearing, and as carly as 2015,
Defendants USOC, USAG and PENNY had knowledge that Defendant NASSAR had abused
young girls, and that he continued to sexually abuse young girls for over another year at MSU,
without notifying, informing, or otherwise cornmunicating this knowledge to MSU.

18.  Under Califomia Penal Code § 11165.7, Defendant USOC is an organization
whose employecs, agents, and/or servants are legally “mandated reportcrs”, considering that
Decfendant USOC is a youth recreational program and Detendant USOC’s empluyces’ duties
require direct contact and supervision of children.

DEFENDANT, USA GYMNASTICS (“USAG™)
19. USAG, atall times mentioned herein, was and is a business entity of form unknown,

having its principal place of business in the State of Indiana. Plaintiff is informed and believes

Q.
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and on that basis alleges that USAG was incorporated in the statc of Texas and/or Anzona.
Defendant USAG is the NGB for gymnastics in the United States, as designated and permitted by
Dcfendant USOC under the Ted Stevens Amateur Sports Act, and selects and trains the United
States gymnastics teams for the Olympics and World Championships, promotes and develops
gymnastics locally and nationally, and serves as a resource center for members, clubs, fans and
gymnasts throughout the United States. USAG has more than 174,000 athletes and professional
members, more than 148,000 athletes registered in competitive programs, as well as more than
25,000 professional, instructor and club members. Approximately 4,000 competitions and events
throughout the United States are sanctioned annually by USAG. USAG waus the primary entity
owning, operating and controlling the aclivities and behavior of its employee agents, including,
but not limited to NASSAR. USAG is also the entity that selects gymnasts for the US National
and Olympic Teams.

20. The bylaws of Defendant USAG, or simjlar bylaws previously enacted, were made
in conformance and under the mandate of Defendant USOC, and were intentioned at protecting
minor gymnasts, including ALY RAISMAN from the ravages of sexual abuse, molestation and
hurassment; a known, foresceable and palpable risk poscd to minor athletes in amateur sports.
Nevertheless, despite these bylaws, rules, policies and procedures purportedly being in effect at
Defendant USAG, Defendant USOC never ensured, audited or checked to confimm that these
policies were effcctive and being implemented properly, adequately and in conformance with the
standard of carc. Had Defendant USOC upheld its duties under Federal Law (specitically, the Ted
Stevens Act) in ensuring National Tcam members, including the Plaintitt ALY RAISMAN, werc
provided proper nmedical care and supervision, and (hat they were properly supervised at
competitions and the National Training Center (the Karolyi Ranch in Huntsville, Texas), then the
dozens of molestations suffered by ALY RAISMAN and numecrous other gymnasts could have
been avoided.

21, Under California Pena) Code § 1 1165.7, USAG 1s an organization whose

employees, agents, and/or servants are legally “mandated reporters”, considetng that Defendant
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USAG is a youth recreational prograim and USAG’s employees” duties require dircct contact and

supervision of children.

DEFENDANT, STEPHEN “STEVE” PENNY
22 Defendant STEVE PENNY (hereinafter “PENNY”) at all times mentioned berein
was and is an adult male individual, who Plaintiff is informed and believes lived in the State of

Indiana during the period of time during which the sexual abuse and harassment alleged herein

took place and is currently a citizen of the State of Indiana. Defendant PENNY was the President

of Defendant USAG charged with the overall management and strategic planning for the
organization. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, on tha basis, alleges that Defendant PENNY
oversaw a wide-ranging, calculated concealment of numerous instances, complaints, and
allegations of sexual abuse and misconduct among the participants and members of Delendant
USAG. Through this conduct, Defendant PENNY’s actions and inactions enabled and rafified the
sexual abuse by Defendunt NASSAR against Plaintiff and other participants and members of
Defendant TISAG and fucled the ongoing concealment of abuse at Defendiant USAG, making it
more unlikely for victims (such as the Plaintiff) to obtain much needed wedical and/or
psychological treatment. Plaintiff is informed and belicves that Defendant PENNY served as
President of Defendant USAG from in or around 2005 to 2017. AL ull times herein alleged,
Defendant PENNY was an employee, agent, and/or scrvant of Defendant USAG, and/or was under
their complcte control and/or active supervision.
DEFENDANT, PAUL PARILLA

23.  Defendant PAUL PARILLA (hercinafier “PARILLA™) at all times mentioned
herein was and is an adult male individual, who PlaintifTis informed and beheves lived in the State
of California, County of Orange, during the period of time during which the sexual abuse and
harassment of ALY RAISMAN by NASSAR alleged herein took place and is currently a citizen
of'the State uf California. Defendant PARILLA was a board member of USAG from in or around
1999 to 2018, and wus Chairman of the USAG board from approximately 2013 to 1p or around
January of 2018. Plaintiff is informed and belicves and, on that basis, alleges that Defendant

PARILLA oversaw a wide-ranging, calculated concealment of pumetous instances, complaints

17
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and allegations of sexual abusc and misconduct among the participants and members of Defendant

—

USAG. Through this conduct, Defendant PARILLA’s actions and inactions enabled and ratified

A9}

3 the sexual abusc by Defendant NASSAR against Plaintiff and other participants and membcrs of
4 Defendant USAG and fueled the ongoing concealment of abuse at Defendant USAG, making it
5 more unlikely for victims (such as the Plaintiff) to obtain much needed medical and/or
6 psychological treatment. Plaintiff is informed and belicves that Defendant PARILLA served as

7 Chairman of the Board from 2015 to present. At all times hercin alleged, Defendant PARILLA

8 was an employee, agent, and/or servant of Defendant USAG, and/or was under (heir complete
9 control and/or active supervision.

10 DEFENDANT, LARRY NASSAR

11 24. Dcfendant NASSAR, the Perpetrator, at all times mentioned herein was and is an

12 || adult male individual, who lived in the State of Michigan during the period of time during which
13 || the sexual ahuse, harassment, and molestation of the Plaintift alleged herein took place and is
14 || currently a citizen of the State of Michigan. Plaintifl'is informed and believes that the NASSAR
1S || was accepted onto the staff of USAG as a trainer in 1986 and then as the National Medical Director
16 || and the National Teom Physician for the women’s gymnastics team in 1996. NASSAR was also
17 || responsible for coordinating the care for USAG and for participants und members at every national
18 || and intcmational coripetition, and would routinely travel to National and International
19 || competitions. NASSAR continued to function in this capacity at USAG until in or around the
20 || middle of 2015. Moreover, it is upon information and belief, that as the National Teamn Doctor {or

21 |l USAG, which was chartered via Defendant UUSOC, NASSAR was the individual rcsponsible for

22 | maintaining LUSAG’s compliance with the medical requirements, policies and procedures sct forth

23 || by Defendant USOC. Nevertheless, Defendant USOC failed to provide supervision, oversight, and

25 || retained by Defendants USAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 as an
26 || Osteopathic Physician and certified athletic trainer to provide care, treatment, and athielic training

27 || to the Defendants USAG and USOC, and its participants, many of which were minors while in his

28 || care, It was through this position of trust and confidence, that Defendant NASSAR exploited ALY
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RAISMAN, in perpetrating his sexual abuse and harassment upon her. All of the sexually abusive
and harassing conduct alleged hercin was done for Defendant NASSAR's sexual gratification and
was based upon the gender of ALY RAISMAN.

25, It is on information and reasonable belicf that NASSAR, using his apparent
authority and position within Defendant USAG and USOC over the minor participants in his
charge, that Defendant NASSAR sexually abused and harassed multiple other mermbers of the
United Statcs Women’s Olympic Gymnastics Team and National teams, over the ncarly 30 ycars
m which Defendant NASSAR has been affiliated wilh Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES |
through 500.

26. At all times hercin alleged, NASSAR was an cmployee, agent, and/or servant of
USAG, Defendant USOC, and DOES | through 500, and/or was under their complete control
and/or aclive supervision.

A7) In thc event DOE | be prosecuted and convicted of a felony for the conducted
alleged herein, the Plaintit requests leave to amend the instant Complaint, such that a request for
attomeys’ fees can be made against DOE 1 pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.4.

DEFENDANTS, DOF. 1 THROUGH 500

28.  Defendants DOES 1 through 500, inclusive, and cach of them, are sued herein
under said [ictitious namcs. Plaintif{ is ignorant as to the true names and capacities of DOES |
through 500, whelher individual, corporate, associate, or otherwise, and thercfore sue suid
Defendants by such fictitious names. When their true names and capacities are ascertained,
Plaintift will request leave of Court to amend this Complaint to state their true names and capacitics
hereis.

29.  Detendants USOC, USAG, NASSAR, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through
500, inclusive, are sometimes collectively referred to hercin as “Defendants” and/or as "All
Detendants"; such collective reterence refers to all specifically named Defendants as well as those
fictitiously named hercin.

30. Plaintiff is informed and believe, and on that basis, allege that at all times

mentioned hercin, each Defendant was responsible in some manner or capacity for the occurrences
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herein alieged, and that Plaintiff's damages, as herein alleged, were proximately causcd by all said

Defendants.

31. At all times mentioned herein, each and every Defendant NASSAR was an
employee, agent, and/or servant of USAG, Defendant USOC, and DOES 1 through 500, inclusive,
and/or was under their complete control and/or active supervision. Defendants and each of them
arc individuals, corporations, partnerships and/or other entitics that engaged in, joined in, and
conspired with other Defendants and wrongdocrs in carrying out the tortuous aml unlawful
activities described in this Complaint.

32.  Plaintiff is informed and believe, and on (hat basis, allege that at all times
mentioned herein, there existed a unity of interest and ownership among Defendants and each of
them such that any individuality and separateness between Defendants, and each of them, ceased
to exist. Defendants and each of them were the successors-in-interest and/or alter egos of the other
Defendants, and each of them, in that they purchased, controlled. dominated and operated each
other without any separate identity, observation of tonmalitics, or other manner of division. To
continue maintaining the facade of a separate and individual existence between and amoung
Dcfendants, and each of them, would serve to perpetrate a fraud and injustice.

LRY Plaintiff is informed and bLelieves, and on that basis, alleges that at all times
mentioned herein, Defendants USOC, USAG, NASSAR, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES |
throngh S00 were the agents, repiesentatives and/or employces of cach and other. In domg the
things hereinafter alleged, Defendants and each of them were acting within the course and scope
of said alternative personality, capacity, identity, agency, represcntation and/or employment and
were within the scope of their authority, whether actual or apparent.

34.  Plainiiff is informed and believes, and on thal basis alleges that al all times
mentioned herein, Defendants USOC, USAG, NASSAR, PENNY, PARIT.ILA, and DOES 1
through 500 were the (rustees, partners, scrvants, joint venturers, shareholders, contractors, and/or
employees of each other, and the acts and omisstons bercin alleged were done by them, acting

individually, through such capacity and within the scope oft heir authority, and with the permission




“Sutte §0C

19130 Von Karman Ave,

Irvine, California 62612
Trelenhane (949) 2$2.09090

(@3]

A W

141

Case 5:18-cv-02479-BLF Document 1-1 Filed 04/25/18 Page 15 of 98

and consent of each and every other Dcfendant and that said conduct was theseafter ratified by

each and evcry other Defendant, and that each of them is jointly and severally liable to Plaintiff.

SEXUAL ABUSE OF ALY RAISMAN AND RESULTING LIFELONG DAMAGES
ants’ institutions, Defendants and NASSAR

35. By his position within the Defend

demanded and required that Plaintiff respect Defendant NASSAR, in his position as team

physician for USAG, authorized by usocC.
36. NASSAR did sexually abuse, harass and molest the ALY RAISMAN, who was a

minor child at the time of the acts at-issue.

37.  The sexual harassment and abuse of Plaintiff by the Perpetrator (NASSAR),
outlined belaw, took place while Defendant the Perpetrator (NASSAR) was the team physician of
Dcfendant USAG and under the control of Defendants USOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES )
through 500. Plaintiff was a participant and member of Defendants USAG, USOC, and DOFS 1
throngh 500, while the Perpetrator (NASSAR) was serving as an agent and employec of

Defendants in his capacity as team physician:

a. In his capacity as a team physician with Delendants USOC, USAG, and DOES |
through 500, the Pecrpetrator (NASSAR) was given custody and supervision of
minors, including Plaintiff. The Perpetrator (NASSAR) used this position to coerce
children to concede to his sexual suggestions, using his authority and position of
trust to exploit them physically, sexually, and emotionally;

b. Plaintiff becamc a member and participant of USAG, and a part of the Junior
National Team for USAG in 2009. Plaintiff soon formed a relationship with the
Perpetrator (NASSAR), USAG’s team physician. At this time, in or around 2010,
the Perpetrator NASS AR) commenctd (he process of “grooming” Plaintiff for later
physical, sexval and emotional abuse. Plaintift' is informed and believes the
Perpetrator NASSAR) would use the guise of care, athletic training, ostcopathy,
and kincsiology to normalize intimate, inappropriatc, and scxually abusive contact
with Plaintiff. Plaintiff is informed and bejieves (he Perpetrator (NASSAR) would
enter the living quarters of the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and other gymnasts at the
Karolyi Ranch, hotcl rooms at meets, in training rooms, and at other locations,
placing Plaintiff under the impression this inappropriate contact was part of
treatment. During this period, Plaintiff was a patient under the Perpetrator’s
(NASSAR) direct supervision and control.

¢. Plaintiff is informed and believes the Perpelrator's (NASSAR) physical and sexual
abusc of Plaintiff commenced after the grooming of Plaintiff began, and occurred
dozens of times whilc the tcam was traveling and before and alter competitive
meets from in or around 2010 to 20}2, and in or around 2015. Specifically, the
Plaintiff was sexually abused by NASSAR in Texas at the Karolyi Ranch, in Santa
Clara County in Califomia, and at numerots locations around the country, as well
as internationally in Australia, Japan, in the United Kingdom and in the
Netherlands. During this period, Plaintiff was a participant, member, and paticnt
under the Perpetrator’s (NASSAR) and Defendants’ direct supervision and control.
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Using his position as team physiciar:i 1hcl Perpch'at%rt(?ﬂﬁfgrﬁ&)letgglﬁ ;lflz;;r‘e:g
i intt 1 g iding re and tr v :
with Plaintiff under the guise of providing her care an¢
lol cmchte as a worll(:i-class, Olympic meldal-‘;vin_mgg gﬁm&ait;l Er:zldire'\trhfﬁg
i 1ces, the Perpetrator (NASSAR) placed his bare hand on an a
F}rzﬁﬁﬁftf: unclothed valgina and anus, on multiple occaslons, 1n Plamn‘(ﬁ S assllzgncd
living quarters, without any supervision or a chaperone. Further, _NASSA o onl
numerous occasions, had an crection while perfonmed the cla{med mIedlca
treatment. Plaintiff is informed and believes that tHe Perpetrator's (I\LA.S‘SAR)f
sexual abuse, molestation, and harassment of Plaintiff occurred on the premises of
Defendants USAG, USOC, in hotels around the world., and various ch_er locations
including, but not limited to in living quarters, n training acilities, in gyros.

38. Plaintitf is informed and believes, and on that hasis alleges, that such conduct by
Defendant NASSAR was based upon Plaintift’s gender, and was done for Defendant NASSAR's
sexual gratification. These actions upon ALY RAISMAN werce performed by Defendant NASSAR
without the lrce consent of Plaintiff, as ALY RAISMAN was a young child, and could thercfore

not give valid legal consent.

39. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was a minor patticipant and niember of
Defendant USAG, USOC and DOES 1 through 500, and was under their complete control,
dominion, and supervision. Defendant NASSAR worked for, was employed by, and-an
agenvscrvant of Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES |} through 500 when NASSAR came into
contact with ALY RAISMAN,

40. At all times matcrial hereto, Defendant NASSAR was under the direct supervision,
management, agency and control of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES
1 through 500, inclusive. Defendant NASSAR was the team physician of Defendant USAG and
for Team USA, under the dominion of Defendant USOC. While a tcam physician at Defendant
USAG, NASSAR’s employment duties included coordinating the care for Defendant USAG at
cvery national and international compelition, providing individual care and providing for the
physical nceds and well-being of participants and members of Defendant USAG (and in accord
with Defendant USOC policies, procedures, and mandates), and care including but not limited to
osteopathic adjustments and kinesiology trcatment to participants and members of Defendant
USAG, which included ALY RAISMAN. ALY RAISMAN was a participant and member of

Defendant USAG, and it is under these circumstances that ALY RAISMAN came to be under the

TR - -[6-
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direction and control of Defendant NASSAR, who uscd lis position of authority and trust to molest

and scxually abuse ALY RAISMAN.
41.  As amember and participant of Defendant USAG and USOC while NASSAR was

a team physician, the ALY RAISMAN was under Defendant NASSAR’s direct supervision,
control and care, which created a special, confidential, and fiduciary relationship between ALY
RAISMAN;, her parents, and Dcfendant NASSAR. Becanse of such relationship, Defendant
NASSAR awed Plaintiff a special duty of carc. Additionally, as the employers and supervisors of
NASSAR, with knowledge that he was in contact with and providing care to children, Defendants
USAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were also 1n a special, conlidential,
and fiduciary relationship with Plaintiff, owing her a duty of care.

42. By assigning Defendant NASSAR us tcam physician of Defendant USAG under
the mandated and control of Defendants USOC and DOES | through 500, Defendant USOC
represented 1o the community and participants and members of Detendant USAG that NASSAR
was sate, trustworthy, and of high morat and clhical repute, such that parcnts of participants and
members need not worry about having NASS AR interact with, and provide carce to their minor
children. Defendants did so in order to preserve their own public image and rcputation, so they
could retain past participants and members and recruit new participants and members, thus
allowing donations and other financial support to coutinue fiowing into their coffers for financial
gain.

43 Plintfis informed and believes, and on that basis, alleges that Defendants USAG,
USOC and DOES | through 500 knew or should have known that Defendant NASSAR had
engaged in unlawful sexually-related conduct jn the past, and/or was continuing to engage in such
conduct. Defendants had a duty to disclose these facts to ALY RAISMAN and her parents, but
negligently and/or intentionally suppressed, concealed or failed to disclose this information. The
duty to disclose this inforination arose by the special, trusting, confidential, fiduciary relationship
between Defendants and Plaintiff.

44.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis, alleges that Defendants knew

or should have known that sexually abusive staff, such as Defendant NASSAR, were violating

% )
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Defendants USOC and USAG policies, without en forcement or abatement, and were continually

allowed to be in contact with minor children, such as ALY RAISMAN. As early as 1999,

Defendant USOC was placed on notice by former Defendant USAG president Bob Colarossi, who
wrote 1 letter to the USOC, explaining that the safety procedures and policies that USOC required
USAG (o follow, were part of a .. fundamentally flawed process...™ and that at USOC there was
an “...apparent indiffcrence to the welfare of young children manifest in the Committee’s
actions.” See Exhibit A as the Letter from Robert Colarossi to USOC. It was not until 11 years
later, that Defendant USOC created the SafeSport program and issued a handbook dctailing
specific procedurcs for preventing sexual abuse of minors, and access to minors by sexual abusers.
Despite instituting this hand book and program, Defendant USOC maintained its course and culture
of ignoring abuse, ignoring its internal poticies and procedures, and placing minors n the way of
danger.

45. Platift is informed and belicves and, an that basis, alleges Defendants knew of|
or should have known of, Defendants NASSAR’s propensity and disposition to ¢ngage in sexual
misconduct with minors before he sexuvally sbused and molested ALY RAISMAN, and knew of
the probability that NASSAR would molest minors with whom he came into contact, such as ALY
RAISMAN.

46.  Dcfendant failed to implement rcasonable sateguards to avoid acts of unlawful
sexual conduct by Defendant NASSAR in the future, including avoiding placement of Defendant
NASSAR in a position where contact and interaction with children is an inherent function.
Defendants ignored and suppressed the past sexual misconduct Defendant NASSAR had engaged
in, and concealed that jnformation from ALY RAISMAN and her family.

47.  Plaintift is informed and believes, and on that basis allegcs, that Defendants were
apprised, kncw or should have known of and/or were put on noticc of Defendant NASSAR’s past
sexual abuse of children, past claims und/or investigations, and his propensity and disposition lo
engagc in such unawful activity and unlawful sexual activity with minor participants and members
such that Dcfendants knew or should have known that Defendant NASSAR would commit

wrongful sexual acts with participants and members. including ALY RAISMAN. Plaintiff is
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informed and bclieves, and on that basis alleges that personnel and/or employment records and
other records of Defendants’ reflect numerous incidents of inappropriate sexual contact and
conduct with minor participants and members by Defendant NASSAR and other professionals,
employees, assstants, agents, supervisors and others, including incidents occurring both on and
off the physical premises of such Defendants and at national and intemational meets. Based on
these records, Defendants knew and/or should have known of Defendant NASSAR’s history ot
sexual abuse, past claims and/or past investigations, and his propensity and disposition to engage
in unlawful activity and unlawful scxval activity with participants and members such that
Defendants knew or should have known thal Defendant NASSAR would commit wrongful sexual
acts wjth thosc minor participanls and members, including ALY RAISMAN.

48. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
NASSAR was repeatedly informally censured, disciplined and/or reprimanded by Defendants
USAG, 1ISOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, for taking an inordinate number
of photographs of young girls, who were gymnasts. This conduct by Defendant NASSAR was in
direct contravention of his duties set forth by the Defendants USAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA,
and DOLS ! through 500, and was not communicated to the Plaintiff or her family. This conduct
was not further investigated, was not rcported to law enforcement or child weltare authontics, and
was never communicated to the Plaintiff, her parents or other gymnasts, in direct violation of
Defendant USAG’s mandate under the Defendant USOC’s policies, procedures and rmles.
Subsequent to NASSAR’s inttial arrest in 2016, thousands of images of child pomography were
located by Federal law enforcement on his electronic devices, and Detendant NASSAR pleaded
guilly to such possession of child pornography in July of 2017. Had Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 effectively implemecnted their safety policics and
procedures, damage to the Plaintiff coukl have been minimized and NASSAR’s conduct could
have been stopped carlier, but il was not.

49. Because of the relationship between Plaintiff aud Defendants, Defendants had an
obligation and duty under the law not to hide material facts and information about NASSAR s

past, and his deviant sexual behavior and propensities. Additionally, Defendants had an affirmative
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duty Lo inform, warn, and institute appropriate protective measures to safeguard minors who were
rcasonably likely to come in contact with Defendant NASSAR, including ALY RAISMAN at the
time. Defendants willfully refused to notity, give adequate warning and implement appropriate
safeguards, thereby creating the peri} that ultimately damaged ALY RAISMAN.

5s0.  PlainGiff is informed and believes, and on that hasis alleges, that prior to ALY
RAISMAN’s sexual abuse by Detendant NASSAR, Defendants engaged in a pattem and practice
of employing sexual abusers. Defendants concealed these facts from participants and members,
their parents, the Plaintiff’s community, the gymnastics community, the public at large, other
NGR's, the United States government, various loeal governmenes, and law enforcement agencies.

S1. As is set forth herein, Defendants and cach o fthem have failed to uphold numerous
mandatory duties required of them by state and [ederal law, as well as their own internal written
policies and procedures, including:

e Duty o use reasonable care lo protect participants and members from known or
foreseeable dangers &

¢ Duty to inform the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and her parents of the knawn risks to
the health and well-being of thew daughter while in Defendant’s USAG and/or USOC
sponsored, authorized, and supcrvised programs, events and trainings,

s Duty to cnact policies and procedwes (hat are not in contravention of the Federal
Civil Rights Act, scction 1983 and the 14th amendment of the United States
Constitution;

* Duty to protcet participants and members and staff, and provide adequale supervision;

¢ Dutyto cnsure that any direction given to participants and members is lawful, and
that adults act fairly, responsible and respect{ully towards participants and members;

* Duty to properly train staff so that they are aware of their individual responsibility for
creating and mamntaining a safe environment;

® Duty to review lhe criminal history of applicants and current erployees;
¢ Duty to provide diligent supervision over minors;
¢ Duty to act promptly and diligently and not ignore or minimize problems.

¢ Duty to report suspected incidents of child abuse and more specifically childhood
sexual abuse (Penal Code sections 11166, 11§67).

¢ Duty to provide adequate and safe medical care pursuant to 36 U.S.C.
§6§220525(b)(4)(E).

"2
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32 Defendants and each of them had and have a duty to protect participants and
mecmbers, including ALY RAISMAN. Defendants were required to, and failed, to provide
adequate supervision, and failed to be properly vigilant in seeing that supervision was sutticient at
Detendants USAG and USOC to ensure the safety of ALY RAISMAN and others.

53.  Despite having a duty 1o do so, IDefendants failed to adequately train and supervise
all staff to create 4 positive and safe environment, specifically including training to perceive, report
and stop inappropriate sexual conduct by other members of the staff, specifically including
NASSAR with children.

54. Delendants failed to enforce their own rules and regulations designed to prolect the
health and safety of the participants and members. Futher, they failed to adopt and implement
safcty measurcs, policics and procecdurces designed to proteet minor children such as Plaintiffs
child from the sexually exploitive and abusive acts of their agents and employees such as
NASSAR.

SS. Plaintiff is infonmed and believes and, on that basis, alleges that as part of
Defendants’ conspiratorial and fraudulent attempt to hide NASSAR’s propensity to sexually abuse
children, and prior sexval misconduct with children, from public scrutiny and criminal
investigation, Nefendants implemented various measures designed to make NASSAR’s counduct

harder to detecl and ensure minors with whom he camc into contact, such as ALY RAISMAN,
would be sexually abused, including:

a. Penrmitting NASSAR to remain in a position of authority and trust afler
Defendants knew or should have known that he was a molester of children;

h. Placing NASSAR in a separate and secluded environrment, at USAG and USOC
authorized camps and cvents, including assigning him unfettered access and
control over minor participants and members that included individual and private
examinations, privale osteopathic adjustments without a chaperone, and allowing
NASSAR {o physically and sexually interact with the children, including ALY
RAISMAN;

c. Failing to disclose NASSAR’s prior record of misconduct, sexual abusc,
harassment and molestation and his propensity to comunit such acts tow ards
participants and members in USAG’s and USOC’s program, the public at large,
and law cnforcement;

d. Allowing NASSAR s unsupcrvised and un-controlled access to minors including
ALY RAISMAN;

21-
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]

56

Holding out NASSAR to ALY RAISMAN, other participants and members of
USAG and USOC, and the public at large as a trustworthy and honest person of
high cthical and moral repute who was capable and worthy of being granted
unsuperviscd access to the children of USAG;

fio or deny such facts about NASSAR

Failing to investigatc or otherwise con y su
; 2 and investigations for sexual abuse;

including prior arxests, charges, claims

Failing to inform, or concealing from Plaintiff and taw enforcement ofticials the
fact that ALY RAISMAN and others were or may have been sexually abused,
harassed and molested, after Defendants knew or should have known that _
NASSAR may have sexually abused ALY RAISMAN or othcrs, thereby enabling
ALY RAISMAN to continue to be endangered and sexually abused, harasscd,
molested, and/or creating the circumstance where ALY RAISMAN and others
were less likely to receive proper medical treatment, thus exacerbating the harm
to ALY RAISMAN;

Holding out NASSAR to Plaintiff and to the community as being in good
standing and trustworthy;

Cloaking NASSAR"s prior scxual misconduct with children within the facade of
normalcy, thereby disguising the nature of his sexual abuse and contact with
minors;

Failing to takc reasonable steps and to implement reasonable safeguards (o avoid
acts of unlaw/ful sexual conduct by NASSAR such as avoiding placement of
NASSAR in functions or environments in which his solitary contact with children
was mherent;

Failing to put in place a system or procedurc to supervise or monitor physicians,
athletic trainers, and agents to insure they do not molest or abuse minors in
Defendants' carc.

Failing to investigate Nassar’s hack ground adequately.

Allowing NASSAR to practicc medicine without a Texas medical license at the
National Training Centcr.

Failing to implement any reasonable, meaningful, or adequate supervision
policies, practices or procedutes at the National Training Center, which would
have prevented NASSAR solitary access to minors, including the Plaintiff.

By his position within the Defendants’ institutions, NASSAR attained a position of

influence over ALY RAISMAN, her parents, and others. Defendants' conduct created a sttuation

of peril that was not, and could not be appreciated by ALY RAISMAN. By virtue of Defendants'

conspiratorial and fraudulent conducl, and in keeping with their intent to fail to disclose and hide

NASSAR’s past and present conduct from the community, the public at large and law ¢nforecment,

Defendants allowed NASSAR to remain in a position of influence where his unsuperviscd or

ncgligently supervised conduct with minor participants and members made the molestation and

abusc of minor participants and members possible.
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57, During the period ALY RAISMAN was being sexually abused and harassed by

NASSAR. Defendants had the authority and ability to prevent such abuse by removing Defendaat

NASSAR from his position as team physician at Team USA, USAG and in his status with the
USOC. They failed to do so, allowing the abusc to occur and to continue unabated. Plaintiff is
informed and belicves and, on that basis, alleges that this failure was a part of Defendants'
conspiratorial plan and arrangement to conceal NASSAR’s wiongful acts, to avoid and inhibit
detection, to black public disclosure, to avoid scandal, to avoid the disclosure of their tolerance of
child sexual molcstation and abuse, 1o preserve a false appearance of propriety, and to avoid
investigation and action by public authority including law enforcement. Such actions were
motivated by a desire to proteet the reputation of Defendants and protect the monetary support of
Defendants, while fostering an environment where such abuse could continue to occur.

58. As a direct result of the sexual harassment and abuse that ALY RAISMAN suffered
from Detendant NASSAR, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARIT.ILA, and DOES 1 through
500 failing to inform the ALY RAISMAN (or her parents) of the danger posed to her by NASSAR,
Plaintiff has had difficulty in meaningfully interacting with others, including those in positions of
authority over Plaintiff including physicians, athletic supervisors, athletic trainers, as well as their
servants and agents. Plaintiff has been limited in her ability to meamngfully interact with others
due to the trauma of childhood sexual abuse, and the upset of having known that they could have
prevented such, had Detendants conveyed thc nppropriate information. This inability to interact
creates conflict with Plaintiff’s values of trust and confidence in others, and has caused Plajntiff
substantial emotional distress, anxiety. nervousness and fear. As a direct result of this concluet,
Plaintiff suffered immensely, including, but not limited to, encountering issucs with a lack of trust,
various negative psychological and cmotional scquelae, depressive symptoms, anxiety, and
nervousness. [Having been nne of the most famous gymnasts in United States (and World) history,
ALY RAISMAN lost millions of dollars in economic damages, as a result of her sexual abuse at

the hands of NASSAR, and continucs to suffer from such loss.

¢ eWoT on y :
59, As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ tortious acts, omissions, wrongfii

conduct and breaches of their duties, Plaintiffs employment and professional development has

— _23..
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{ inti ' ¢ ancial opportunities
heen adversely affected. Plaintiff has losl wages, endorsements, and many fina PP

and will continue to lose wages in an amount to be determined at trial. Plaintift has suffered

substantial economic injury, all to Plaintiff’s gencral, special and consequential damage n an

amount o be proven at trial, but lin no event less than the minimum jurisdictional amount of this
Court.

60.  Asa forther direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful actions, as herein
alleged, Plaintiff has been hurt in their health, strength and activity. Plaintff has sustained
permanent and continuing injury to their nervous system and pesson, which has caused and
continues to cause great mental, physical and nervous pain, suffering, fright, upset, grief, worry
and shock in an amount according to proof at trial but in no event less than the junisdictional
minimum reguirements of this Court.

61. In subjecting Plaintif{ to the wrongful treatment hercin descnbed, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, NASSAR and DOELS 1 through 500 acted willfully and
maliciously with the infent to harin Plaintiff, and in conscious disregard of Plaintif("s rights, so as
to constitute malice and/or oppression under Califomia Civil Code scction 3294. Plaintift is
informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that specifically, the Detendants acted in concen,
and under their authority as child care providers, with reckless disregard for the concem of the
minor participants in 1ts charge, in order to further financially benefit their respective business’
growth, The Defendants acted intentionally in creating an environment that harbored molesters,
put the vulnerable minor participants at-risk of harm, ignored clear waming signs and their dulies
to report sexual abusers and molesters in their ranks, to maintain a fagade of normalcy, in order (o
maintain its funding and provide further financial growth of Defendants USAG, USOC, and
PENNY and PARILLA, individually, on thc intemational Jevel. The safety of the minor
participants that were entrusted to Defendant USAG and represented as heing protected through
Defendant USOC, was compromised due to Detendants desire to maintain the status quo of the
Defendants USAG and USOC organizations, and avoid any public scrutiny for its misconduct.
Plaintiff is informed, and on that basis alleges, that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acls,

as alleged hercin above, werce ratified by the officers, directors, and/or managing agents of the

4
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Defendants. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to recover punitive damages, in an amount to be

deterinined by the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, NASSAR and

DOES 1 through 500.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
SEXUAL HARASSMENT: C1VIL CODE § 51.9
(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USAG, USOC, NASSAR and DOES 1

through 500)

62.  The Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every

atlegation contained herein above as though fully sct forth and brought in this causc of action.

65. Duging the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s time as a2 minor gymnast under the care,
control and/or mandate of Defendants USOC, USAG and DOES 1 through 500, NASSAR
recklessly and wantonly made sexual advances, solicitations, requests, demands for sexual
compliance of a hostile naturc based on the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s gender that were
unwelcome, pervasive and severe. NASSAR inlentionally, recklessly and wantonly did acts which
resulted in harmful and offensive contact with intimate parts of the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN's
person, including but not limited to NASSAR using the authonty and trust mherent in his position
as an Olympic Doctor to exploit her physically, psychologically and emotionally. These acts were
done for NASSAR’s sexual gratification; all while NASSAR was acling in the course and scope
of his agency/employment with Defendants USAG, USOC, aud DOES 1 through 500.

64.  The incidents of abuse outlined herein above took place while the Plaintiff ALY
RAISMAN was under the care of NASSAR, in his capacity and position as an Olympic Doctor,
while acting specifically on behalf of Defendants USOC, and DOES 1 through 500.

65.  Because ol the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s young age, nature of her competitive
sport, and relationship with NASSAR as a gymnast at Defendant USAG (uoder the control and
authority of Defendants USOC and USAG), the Pluintiff ALY RAISMAN was unable to eusily
terminate her doclorpatient relationship with NASSAR.

66.  Because of NASSAR’s position of authority over Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN, and
the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s mental and emotional state, and her young age under the age of

consent, Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN was unable to, and did not give meaningful consent to such

acts.
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67. Even though Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES | through 500 knew or should

have known of these activities by NASSAR, Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500
did nothing to investigatc, supervise or monitor NASSAR to ensure the safcty of Plaintiff ALY
RAISMAN. Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES 1 through 500 ratified the sexual misconduct
of NASSAR by retaining him in employment after discovering, or ignoring the facts that would
have led them to discover, his misconduct.

68 Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500's conduct was a breach of
their dutics 10 the Plaintift ALY RAISMAN.

69.  As aresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN suftered and
continues to suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, cmotional distress, phystcal manifestations
of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of
enjoyment of life; have suffered and continue to sutter and were prevented and will conlinue to be
prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full cnjoyment of life; will sustain
Joss of earnings and caming capacity, and has iucurred and will continue to incur expenses for
medicat and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.

70. In subjccting Plaintiff to the wrongful treatment herein described, Defendants
USOC. USAG. NASSAR and DOFES ! thraugh 500, acted willfully and maliciously with the intent
to harm Plaintiff. and in conscious disregard of Plainti ff's rights, so as to constitute malicec and/or
oppression under California Civil Code section 3294. Plaintiff 1s informed, and on that basis
alleges, that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acts, as allcged bercin above, were ratified
by the officcrs. dirceiurs. and/or managing agents ot the Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES |
through 500. Plaintiff is thercfore entitled, to the recovery of punitive damages, in an amount to be
determined by the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOLS 1 through 500.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
MASHA’S 1.AW (18 U.S.C. §§2255, 2423(b), 2423(¢))

(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USAG, USOC, NASSAR und DOES 1
through S00)

71. Plaintift re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every allegation

containcd herein above as though fully sct forth and brought in this cause of action.

nN&L
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72. Under 18 U.S.C. §§2255, the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN has a private right of action

against NASSAR, and any defendants who are vicariously and/or strictly responsible for NASSAR
while abroad perpetrating his sexual assuulis against ALY RAISMAN, including Defendants
USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500. See Doe v. Celebrity Crases, Inc. (11th Cir. 2004) 394
F.3d 891, 894.

73 Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN is a victim of the federal crime codified as 18 LLS.C.
§2423(b), which was perpetrated by NASSAR and provides, “[a] person wha travels in interstate
commerce or travels into the Uniled States, or 1 United States citizen ... who travels in foreign
commerce, for the purpose of engagingin any illicit sexual eonduct with another person shall
be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 30 ycars, or both.”

M. Furthermore, Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN is a victim of the federal crime codified as
18 U.S.C. §2422(¢), whicl was perpetrated by NASSAR and provides, “fa]ny United States
citizen ... who travels in foreign commerce or resides, either temporarily or pcrmancntly, in a
foreign country, and engages in any illicit sexual conduct with anether person shall be fined
under (his title or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or both.”

75.  Asalleged hercin, Detendant NASSAR travelled with ALY RAISMAN to Europe,
Australia, Japan, and across state lines, wherein he sexually harassed, abused, and molested her.
when she was under the age of 18 years old and as previously stated herein. Defendant NASSAR
travelled with ALY RAISMAN for the sole purpose of engaging in this elicit scxual conduct with
her.

70.  Asa result of the above-described conduct, the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN suffered
and continues to sulfer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical
manifestations of emoltional distress, embarrassment, loss of selt-esteem, disgrace, humiliation,
and loss of enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and were prevented and wil)
continue Lo be prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the fuil enjoyment of life;
will sustain loss of earmnings and earning capacity, and have incomed und will continue to incur

expenses for medical and psychological trealment, therapy, and counseling.
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1 7. In subjecting Plaintiff to the wrongful trecatment herein described, Defendants
2 USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500, acted willfully and maliciously with the intent to harm
3 Plaintiff, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff's rights, so as to constitute malice and/or
4 oppression under Califormia Civil Code section 3294. Plaintiff is informed, and ou that basis
5 alleges, that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acts, as alleged herein above, were ratified
6 by the officers, directors, and/or managing agents of the Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES ]
7 through 500. PlawntifTis thereflore entitled, upon proper application (o the court, to the recovery of
8 paitive damages, in an amomt to be determined by the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG,
9 and DOES ) through 500.
10 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
11 (Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defondants USOC, USAG, NASSAR. PENNY,
i3 PARJILLA, and DOES 1 through 500)
] w 78.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference hercin each and every atlegation
e contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.
i: 79. Nefendants TJSAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA. and DOLS 1 dunough 500°s
i conduct toward Plaintift, as 'dr.suribud hercin, wag outrageons and extreme.
o R0, A rcasonable person would nar expect or tolerute Detendants USOC, USAG,
o PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 pntting NASSAR in positions of authotity al
19 Defendants USAG, USOC, or DOES | through 500, which enabled NASSAR to have access to
20 minors including Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN, so that he could commit wrongful sexual acts with
21 her, including the conduct described herein above. Plaintiff had great trust, faith and confidence in
2 in Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, which, by virtue of
23 NASSAR and Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's
24 wrongful conduct, tutned to fear.
o 8. Morcover, by failing to report NASSAR or honor any of their legal reporting
i obligations and by failing to promplly notify the parents of Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN of the abuse
5% of their daughter, Defendants USOC and DOLS | through 500 knew that Plaintiff would be directly
” harmed. Under the holding in Phyilis P. case, a special relationship and a duty to notify the parents
of Plaintiff was stated. Such duty being independent of any duty Defendants USOC, USAG.
—_— -28- o
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PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owed to Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and is a dtrect

duty owed to the Plaintiff’s parents and was thereby orcated with Plainti ff’s parents, whereby

Plaintiff's parents are intended or direct victims of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 failures and can recover for any emotional distress

proximately caused thereby. Specifically, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and

DOES 1 through 500 had knowledge of NASSAR's dangerous propensities to sexually abuse
children, yet concealed and failed to disclose to Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN this information.

82. A reasonable person would not expect or tolerate Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 to be incapable of supcrvising and preventing
employees of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES { through 500, ncluding
NASSAR. from committing wroniglul sexual acts with minor gymnasts including Plaintiff ALY
RAISMAN., or to properly supuivisc NASSAR to prevent snch abuse from occurring, or to
promptly notify parents or authorities.

83.  DNefendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, NASSAR, and DOES 1 through

500's conduct described herein was intentional and malicious and donc for the purpuse of causing,

or with the substantia) cenainty (hat it would cause Pluintiff ALY RATSMAN and her parents, (0
suffer humiliation, mental anguish and emotional and pbysical distress.

84, As aresult of the above-desceribed conduct, Plaintitt suffered and continues 10 su e
great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotivnal
distress, embarrassmietit, 10ss of sclf-csteem, disgrace, hamilialion, and loss of cnjeyment of life;
have suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be prevented from
performing daily activitics and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain loss of carnings
and earning capacity, and has incmired and will continuc to incut expenses for medical and
psychological treatment, therapy, and counscling.

85 In subjecting Plaintiff to the wrongful trcatment herein described, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARII.T.A, NASSAR and DOES 1 tluough 500 acted willfully and
maliciously with the intent to hamu Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN. and in conscious distegard of

Plainliff’s rights, so as to constitute malice and oppression under California Civil Code section

o =29-
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3204. Plaintiff is thercfore cntitled to the recovery of punitive damages, in an amount to be

determined hy the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1

through 500, in a sum to he shown according (o proof.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ‘

UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES (BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE §17200)
(Plaintiff ALY RATSMAN Against Defendnnts USOC, USAG, PENNY _PARILLA and
DOES 1 through 500)

86.  .Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporatcs by reference herein each and every allegation

contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause vf action.
87. Plaintiff is inforiied and belioves and, on that basis,, alleges that Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY. PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 have engaged in unlawful, unfair

and/or deceplive business practices including allowingNASSAR to engage in repeated harassment

of panicipante and members, including Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN, and failing to take all
reasonable stepe to prevent harassment and abuse from occurring. The unlawful, untair and
deceptive business practices aleo included failing to adequately investigatc, vet, and cvaluate
individuals for employinent with Delondantg USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOS 1

throngh SO0, refusing to design, implement, and aversee policies regarding sexual harassment and

abuse of children in a reasonable manner that 138 customary in similar cducational environments.
Dlaintiff is infonned and believes and. on that basis. alleges that Detendants USOC, USAG, and
DOES ! through 500 have engaged in unlawful, unfair and deceptive business practices including
conceahing sexual harassment, abuse and/or molestation claims by participants and members, such
as Plainuff ALY RAISMAN, so as (o retain other participants and members within Deferlants
USA G, who were: not apprised of such illicit sexual misconduct by NASSAR.

88. Plaintiff is infurmed and believes, and on that basis alleges that Defendunts USOC

USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 engaged in a common scheme, arrangement

or plan to actively conceal allegations against scxual abusers who were employees, agents
members, and/or participants at Defendants USAG, USOC, and DOES 1 through 500, such that
Detendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PA RILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 could maintain their

public image, and avoid detection of such abuse and abusers. Plaintiff is informed and believes

and thereon alleges that Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through S00 actively conccaled

e -30-
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these allegations, such that Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA. and DOES 1 through
500 would be insulated from public scrutiny, governmental oversight, and/or investigation from
various law enforcement agencics, all donc in order to maintain the false sense of safety for
participants and their families and to perpetuatc the program financially.

89. By engaging in unlawful, unfair and deceptive businuss practices, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 bLenefitted financially to the
detriment of its comnpetitors, who had to comply with the law.

90. Linless restrained, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1
through 500 will continue to cngagc in the unfair acts and business practices described above,
resulting in great and urcparable hari to Plaintiff and/or other similarly situated participants and
members.

91.  Plointiff seeks restitution for all amounts improperly obtained by Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLS 1 through 500 through the uvsc of the above-
mentioned unlawful business practices, as well as the disgorgement of all ill-gotten gains and
rcstitution on behalf of Plainti €€ and all other similarly situated participants and members who were
also subjected to Defendant’s illegal and unfair business practices.

92. Pursuant to section 17203 of the California Business and Professions Code and
available equitable powwuars;, Plaintiff js ontitled 0 a preliminacy and  pormanent injunction,
enjoining Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500 from continuing the unlawful and
unfair business practices deseribed above. Further, Plaintiff sceks the appointient of a court
monitor to enforce 1ts orders regarding client safety. In addition, Plaintiff is entitled to recover
reasonable attorneys' fees pursuant to the California Business and Professions Code and section

1021.5 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Apgainst Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through 500) ==

93.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference berein cach and every allcgation

contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

il
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1 94 Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, as

2 childeare custodians representing, {hat they would keep Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN safe, were in a

3 fiduciary relationship with Plantift ALY RAISMAN, owing her a special duty of due care.
4 Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARTI.LA, and DOES 1 through SO0 are mandated reporters,
5 or organizations required to comply with Mandated Reporting laws, with respect to claims of child
6 | abuseand child safety. .

7 i 95.  Moreover, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through

8 I 500 owed Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN a statutory, common {aw and constitutional duty to protect

o) her and guaraniee her safety while i their custody, care, and control.

1()‘ 96. The Delendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 400 also
3 11| owed a specinl duty o ALY RAISMAN's parents. As diroot vietima far failira ta notify of abuse
;31;2: g 12| of their minor child (See Phyllis P. v. Claremont Unified School District, 183 Cal. App. 3d at 1193)
i:;j : 13"} which held that a school district had a special relationship with 4 parent because the pacent was the
§:§ f: 14 || “icul aud foresceable” victim of the defendants’ negligent conduct. Dircet victims may bring
é{:f’ £ )5 || claims where there was a negligent breisch of u duty urising out of 4 preexisting relationship. Any
Eéié 16 breach committed by the Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLS 1} through
<z

17 || 500 violates this special relationship and duty owed to Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s parents.
13 97.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500
19 || breached their fiduciary duty by failing to properly supervisc NASSAR and take appropriate steps

t prevent the lewd and lascivious conduct perpetrated by NASSAR against ALY RAISMAN.
2] || Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 also failed to reporl

22| NASSAR pursuant to USOC and 1JSAG policy. Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through

300 also failed to implement or follow appropriate policies and procedure. sto protect minors,

N
»

including ALY RAISMAN. In addition, Defendunts USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and

39)
(9]

DOES 1 through 500 failed to report NASSAR’s ahuse or promptly notify ALY RAISMAN’s
26 /I parcnts.

27 ¢ S
o8, The employees, servants, agents, volunteers or other representatives of Defendants

USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, respectively, willfully and

i S x
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intentionally ignorcd behavior in NASSAR and complaints against NASSAR that they should have

reported due to their responsibility as mandated reporters.

990.  Asaresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff suffered and continues to suffer
great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional
distress, embarrassment, loss of self-csteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of life;
has suffered and continues to suffer and were prevented and will continue Lo be prevented from
performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment ol life; will sustain loss of camings
and eamning capacity, and has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and
psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.

100. In subjecting Plaintiff to the wrongful treatment herein described, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 acted willfully and maliciously
with the intent to harm Plaintiff, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights, so as to constitute
malice and oppression under California Civil Code section 3294. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to
the recovery of punitive damages, in an amount to be determined by the court, against Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500, in a sumn to be shown according to

proof.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
CONSTRUCTIVE FRAUD

(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILILA, and
DOES 1 through 500)

101.  Plainliff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every aliegation
contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

102. By holding NASSAR out as an agent of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 fhrough 500, and by allowing him to undertake the physical carc and
athlctic training of minor children such as ALY RAISMAN, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, und DOLS 1 through 500 entered into a confidential, fiduciary,
with Plaintiff.

and special relationship

103. By holding themsclves out as professional organizations for woman’s gymnastics

undertaki clee q i i i {
crtaking to sclect and train national gymnastics teams, enforcing policies, rules. and procedures
b 3 '

for gymnasts’ safety and facilitating competition both nationally and intemationally of ALY

D

—
—_—
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; (s sOC, USAG, PENNY,
RAISMAN and other migor tcam participants and members, Defendants USOC, US

duciary and special relationship

with Plaintiff and other minor gymnasts (as well as ther familics).

104. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLS 1 through 500
. . . . . d

breached (heir confidential, fiduciary duty and special duties to Plaintiff by the wrongful an
negligent conduct described above and incomorated into this cause of action, and in so doing,

pained an advantape over Plainiiff in matters relating to Plainti fs safcly, security and health. In

particular, in breaching such duties as alleged, Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA,
and DOES 1 through 500 were able to sustain their status as institutions (or individuals) of high
moral repute, and preserve their reputation, all at the expense of Plaintiff's further injury and in
violation of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's

mandatory dutics.

105 By virtue ol wieiv conlidential, Hduaciary and spacinl seliaiondap wathy Plainﬁf'{',
Defendants USQC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owed Plaintiff a duty
to:

a. Investigale or otherwise confirm or deny such claims of sexual abuse:

b. Revenl cuch facts to Plaintf), the gvmnasics comrmnuily, the connunity at large,
and law enforcement agencies;

c. Refuse to place NASSAR and other molesters in pasitions of frust and authoriry
within Dcfendants USOC, USAG and DOES | through 500's institutions;

Refuse to hold out NASSAR and other molectars 10 the publie, the community,
minors, parents and law cnforcement agencics as being i1 good standing and,

trustworthy in keeping with him and his position as a team physician and
authority figurc;

Refuse to assign NASSAR and other molesters to positions of power within
Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES ) through 500 and over minors; and

Disclose to Plaintiff, the public, the school community, minors, and law

enforcement agencies the wrongful, tortious, and sexually exploitive acts that
NASSAR had engaged in with children.

106.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOFS | through 500's breach

of their respective duties included:

a. Not making reasonabie investigations of NASSAR;

4.




6l
AG) 1870

I3huT Yon sat-anm Ave., SLite UJ

livre Ceiiornia §

Taleehons

10

12
13|

Case 5:18-cv-02479-BLF Document 1-1 Filed 04/25/18 Page 35 of 98

b. Issuing no wamings about NASSAR;

- Permitting NASS AR 1o routinely be alone with and in control of minors,
unsupervised;

d. Not adopting a policy to prevent NASSAR from routinely having minors and
participants and mcembers in his unsupervised control;

7 Making no reports of any allcgations of NASSAR's abuse of participants and
members, or of minors prior to or during his cmployment and/or agency at
Defendants USOC, USAG and DOES ! through 500; and

f Assigning and continuing to assign NASSAR to duties which placed him in

positions of authority and trust over minors, positions in which NASSAR could
easily isolate and sexually abuse minors.

107. At the time that Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES )
(hrouglhi 500 cngaged in such suppression and conccahment of acts, such acts were donc for the
purposc of causing Plaintiff to forbear on her rights.

108. Defendants USOC. USAG. PENNY. PARILLA. and DOES 1 through 500's
misconduct did reasonably cause Plaintiff'io farbear on her rights.

109. The misrepresentations, suppressions and concealment of facts by Defendants
U30C, UBAQ, FENNY, PARILLA, aud DOES 1 (hrough SO0 were intended to and werce likely
to mislead Plaintiff and others 1o bolieve thit Defendants USOC, USAG. PENNY?, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through 500 had no knowledge of any charges. claims orinvestigations against NASSAR,
or that there werc no other charges, claims or investigations of unlawful or sexual misconduct
against NASSAR or others anid that there was no need for them to take Apther action or precaation.

110. T'he misrcpresentations, suppressions and concealmient of Jucts by Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILILA, and DOES | through 500 was likely to mislead Plaintiff and
others to believe that Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500

had no knowledge of the fact that NASSAR was a molester, and was known to conunit wrongful

sexual acts with minors, including with ALY RAISMAN.

111, Defendants 1JSOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 knew
or should have known at the time they suppressed and concealed the true facts regarding others’
sexual molestations, that the resulting impressions were misleading.

112, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500

suppressed and concealed the true facts regarding NASSAR with the purpose of: preventing
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Plaintiff, and others, from lcaming that NASSAR and others had been and were continuing to
sexually harass, molest and abuse minors and others under NASSAR’s and Detendants USOC,
USAG. PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES } through 500's coatrol, dircction, and guidance, with
complete impunity; inducing people, inciuding ALY RAISMAN and other benefactors and donors
to participate and financially suppost Defendants USOC and DOES ] through 500; USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ] through 500's program and other enterpriscs of Defendants
USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500; preventing further reports and outside investigations
into NASSAR and Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILY.A, and DOES 1 through 500's
conduct; preventing discovery af Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1

through S00's own conduct, avuiding dJdamge 1o the reputations of Defendants USOC, USAG,

PIENNY and DOES 1 through >00; protecting Dcfcndants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA,

and DOES 1 through S00's power and stalus in the community and the gymnastics community:
avoiding damage to the reputation of Defendunts USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES
{ through 500, or Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARIII.A| and DOES 1 through 500's
institutions; and avoiding the civil and criminal liability o( Defendants UISOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, of NASSAR, aud of othess.

113. Atalltimes mentioned herein, Defendants USOC. USAG. PENNY, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through 500, with knowlcdge of (he tortious nature of their own and NASSAR’s conduct,
knowingly conspired and gave cach other substantial assistance to perpctrate the
misrepresentations, fraud and deceit alleged herein—-covering up the past allegations of sexual

misconduct lodged againet NASSAR, and allowing NASSAR (o remnain in his position as a teamn
physician so they could maintain their reputations and continuc with their positions within the
organization.

114, The Plaintiff and others were misled by Dclendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's suppressions and concealment of facts, and in rcliance
tbereon, were induced to act or induced not to act, exactly as intended by Defendants USoc,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500. Specifically, Plaintiff were induced to

believe that therc were no allegations of criminal or scxual abuse against NASSAR and that he
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was safe to be around children. Had Plaintiff known the true facts about NASSAR, they would
have not participated further in activities of NASSAR, or continued to financially support

Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500's activities. They would have reported the
noatters to the proper authorities, to other minor participants and members and their parents so as
to prevent future recurrences; they would not have allowed children, including the PlaintifT] to be
alone with, or have any relationship with NASSAR; thcy would not have allowed children,
including the Plaintiff, to attend or be under the control ot Detendants USOC, USAG and DOES
1 through 500; they would have undertaken their ewn investigations which would have led to
discovery of the true facts; and they would have sought psychological counseling for the Plaintift,
and for other children molested and abused by NASSAR.

115. By giving NASSAR the position of team physician, Defendants USOC, USAU,

PENNY, PARILLA. and DOES 1 through 500 impliedlv represented that NASSAR wac «afe and
morally fit to give children carc and provide ostecopathic adjustments.

116, When Defendants USOC, USAG. PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 thrawuyph SO0
Mmade these atthirmatuve o1 Onplied representations and non-disclosures of material  facts,
Defendants USOC. USAG, PENNY, FPARILLA, and HOES | through 500 knew or should have

known that 1he facts were othetwise. Delendunts USOC, UISAG, PENNY, PARILLA, und DOES
1 through 500 knowingly and intentionntiv subpressed the matetial Gicts that NASSAR had on

numerous, prior vccusions sexually, physically, and mentlally abused minors and participants and
members of Defendunts USOC, USAG and NOIAS | through 500, including the Plaintiff, and knew
of or learned ot conduct, ot should have kunown of conduct by NASSAK which placcd Detendants
USOC, TISAG, and DOES 1 thirough 500 an notice that NASSAR had previously Loen suspected
orfelanies, includmg unlawful soxual conduct will; tiinots, and was likely abusing children
/. B inti it 3| izali
ecause of Plaintiff’s position on the outside of thesc organizalions, and because
ofthe status Of NASSAR as a trusted, authority figure to Plaintiff and her (amily, ALY RAISMAN
was vulnerablc to NASSAR and the i
S8+ representations of Defl O
p elendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,

PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500, both express and implied. NASSAR sought the Plaintiff out
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and was empowcred by and accepted ALY RAISMAN's vulnerability. Plaintiffs vulnerability

v
2 || also prevented her from effectively protecting herself from the sexual advances ol NASSAR.
L1R Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 had (he

3
4 duty to obtain and disclose information relating to sexual misconduct of NASSAR.
5 119. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500

6 misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose information relating to sexual misconduct of

7 NASSAR.
8 120. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 knew
9 that they had misrepresented. concealed or fuiled o disclose informuation related Lo sexuud

10 || misconduct of NASSAR.
1] 121 Plaintiff jushifiably rclied upon Defendants TISOC, TISAG, PENNY, PARILLA,

12 || and DOES 1 through 500 for information relalting to sexual unsconduct of NASSAR.
132 122,  Defendants USOC. UISAG, PENNV, PARIIIA, and DOES 1 theangsh SO0 in
14 concert with cach other and with the indeut (o conceal el deliaud, conspired und came to a meeting

5 of e gtinds wherchby ey would mistepresent, conceal or ) 1o disclosc information rclating 1o

16 thc scxual misconduct of NAS3AR, the inability uf Delendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,

¢

= 17 PARTI.LA, and DOES | rthrongh 500 to supcrvise or stop NASSAR from sexually harassing.
18 || molesting and abusing ALY RAISMAN, and their own failure to properly investigate, supervise

19 || and monitor bis conduct with minor participants and members.

20 123. By so concealing, Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1

21|l through 500 committcd at lcast onc act in futhciauce of e conspiracy.

22 124, As aresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered and continues (o
23 || suffer great pain of mind and body, shack, emational distress, physical manifestations of cmotional
24 || distress including embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations, and loss of
25 || enjoyment of life; has snffered and continues to suffer and was prcvented and will continue to be
26 || prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
27 || loss of earnings and earning capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

28 || medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counscling,
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125.  In addition, when Plaintiff finally discovered the fraud of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, and continuing thercafter, Plaintiff
experienced recurrences of the above-described injuries. Plaintiff experienced cxireine and severe
mental anguish and emotional distress that Plaintiff had been the victim of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500's fraud; that Plaintiff had not becn ablc to
help other minors being molested because of the fraud, and that Plaintiff had not been able, because
of the fraud, to receive timely medical treatment necded to deal with thc problems Plaiti(f has
suffered and continues to suffer as 4 result of the sexual harassment, molestatien and abuse of ALY
RAISMAN.

126. In subjecting ALY RAISMAN to the wrongful treatment herein described,
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 acted willfully and
maliciously with the intent (o harm Plaintift, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights, so as
to constitutc malicc and/or oppression under Califomia Civit Code scction 3294. Plaintitt is
informed, and on that basjs, allcge that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acts, as alleged
hercin above, were ratiticd by the ofticers, dircctors, and/or managing agents of thesc Defendants.

Plaimiff is tberctore culitled to recover punitive daimages, in an amount to be determined hy the
cout , apainst Defendamts USOC, USAG, PENNY and DOES 1 through S00.
SEYE A LOF
NEGLIGENCE
i ISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY. PARILLA, and
DOES 1 throueh 500)

127.  Plaintiff re alleges and incorporatcs by rcfercnce herent cach and every allegation
contained berein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

128, Prior to and after the first incident of thc Perpetrator’s (NASSAR) sexual
harassment, molestation and abuse of Plaintiff, throngh the present, Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY. PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, knew and/or should havc known that the
Perpetrator (NASSAR) had and was capable of scxually, physically, and mentally abustng and
harassing Plaintiff or other victims.

129.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY. PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 and

each of them had special duties to protcct the minor Plaintiff and the other participants and
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members, when such minors were entrusted to Defendants USOC:, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA,
and DOES 1} through 500's carc by their parents. Plaintiff's care, welfare and physical custody was
entrusted to Defendants USOC and DOES | through 500. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 voluntanly accepted the entrusted care of Plaintiff. As such,
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 o wed Plantiff, a minor
child, a special duty of care that adults dealing with children owe to protect them from harm. The
duty to protect and wam arose from the special, trusting, confidential, and fiduciary relationship
between Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 and Plaintiff.

130. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500
breached their duties of care to the minor Plainti ff by allowing the Perpetrator (NASSAR) to come
into contact with the minor Plaintiff and other participants and members, without supervision; by
failing to adequately hire. supervise and retain the Perpetrator (NASSAR) whom they pemmitted
and cnabled to have access to Plamnti(l; by concealing om Plaintiff, her family, and law
enforcement that the Perpetrator (NASSAR) was sexually harassing, molesting and abusing
winors: and by holding the Perpetrator NASSAR) out to Plaintiff and her family a3 being of high

moral and cthical repute, in good standing and trustworthy.

131.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500
breached their duties to Plaintiff by failing to investigate or otherwise confirm or deny such facts
of sexual abuse by the Perpetrator (NASSAR), failing to reveal such facts to Plaintif(, her parents,
the comnnunity and law enforcement agencices, and by placing the Perpetrator (NASSAR) into a

position of trust and authority, holding hum out to Plaintiff, her parents, and the public as being in

good standing and trustworthy,
132. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500

brcached their duty to Plaintiff by failing to adequately monitor and supervise the Pcrpetrator
(NASSAR) and failing to prevent the Perpetrator (NASSAR) from committing wrongful sexual
acts with minors including Plaintift. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES

| through 500’s voluminous past records of sexual misconduct by the Perpetrator (NASSAR)

caused Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 to know, or
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gave them information where they should have known, of the Perpetrator's (NASSAR) incapacity
to serve as 4 team physician, providing for the physical carc of minor females.

133.  As aresull of the above-described conduct, Plaint:ff has suttered and continues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of cmotional
distress including embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations, and loss of
enjoyment of lifc; has suffcred and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to he
prevented from pertorming daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain

loss of canings and caming capacity, and has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counsehng.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
NEGLIGENT SUPFRVISION
(Plaintiit ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through S00)

134.  Plaintift rc-alleges and incorporates by reference herein cach and every allegation

containal haein ablove as though fully sct furth and brought in this cause of action.

135 Ny virtne of Taintiffs special relationship with Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PPARILLA, and DOLS 1 through 500, and Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES | through 500's relation to the Perpetralor (NASSAR), Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through S00 owed Plaintiff a duty to provide rcasonable
supervision of the Perpetrator (NASSAR), to usc reasonable care in investigating the Perpetrator’s
(NASSAR) background, and to providc adcquatc warning to Plaintiff, Plaintiff's family, and minor
participants and members of the Perpetrator’'s (NASS AR) dangerous propensities and unfitness.
As organizations and individuals responsible for, and entrusted with, the welfare of minor children,
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARIL1LA, and DOES ! through 500 had a duty to protect,
supervise, and monitor both the Plaintiff from being preyed upon by scxuval predators, and to
supervise and monitor the Perpetrator (NASSAR) such that he would not he placed in seclusion

with minor children, including the Plaintift.

136.  As representatives of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES
1 through 500, where many of the participants and members thercof are vulnerable minors

entrusted to these Detendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500, these

A
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Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's agents expressty and
implicitly represented that team physicians and staff, including the Perpetrator (NASSAR), were
not a sexual threat to children and others who would fall under the Perpetrator’s (NASSAR)

influence, control, direction, and care.

137. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, by and
through their respective agents. servants and cmployces, kncw or shonld have known of the
Papettator’s (NASSAR) daugerous and exploilive  propensities and  that the Perpetraior
(NASSAR) wis an unfir agent. Despite such knowledge, Defendants USOU, USAG, PENNY,

PARILL A, und DOES | through SO0 riegligently failed to supervise the Paerpatrator (NASSAR) in

hig position of trust and nuthority os a tcam physician and authority figucc over children, where he

wan able to comgut wrongtul acts of soaual Juiscopduact agdinst Plainare Daerendants UISOC,

UISAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ( through 500 tuiled to provide rcasonable supcivisivin of
the Porpelralor (NASSAR), failead to usc reasonable care in invearigating the Perpetrator
(NASSAR), and failed w0 provide adequate warning to laintift and Pluintiffs family of the
Pempetrator’s (NASSAR) dangerous propencities ond unfitness. Dotenduniy IJSOC, USAGQG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ] through S00 further failed to take reasomiable steps to ensure the
cafety of minory, including Dlaiotiff, flour sexual haraggment, molestation, und abuse.

13%. At no time during the periods of tima alleged did Defenduats USOC, USAG,
PENNY. PARILLA. and DOES 1 through S00 have in place a reasonahlc systeim ur procedure 1o
mvestipate. supervise and monitor the team physician or stulf, iucluding the Perpetrator
(NASSAR), to prevent pre-sexual grooming and sexual harassment, molestation and abusc of
childreg, nor did they implement a system or procedure to oversee or monitor conduct toward
minors and others in Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's
care.

139, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500 were
awarc or should have been aware of how vulnerable children were to sexual harassment,

molestation and abuse by teachers and other persons of authority within Defendants USOC and

DOES 1 through 500°s eatities.
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1 140. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were

2 |[ put on notice, knew and/or should have known that the Perpetralor (NASSAR) had previously

¢ m unlawful sexual conduct with minors, and had comntted

3 engaged and was conlinuing to engag

4 other [elonies, for his own personal sexual gratification, and that it was foreseeable that he was

inillici iviti i int) nder the cloak of
S engaging, or would engage in illicit scxual activities with Plainti ff, and others, u

H 1 . Q Q
§) the authoritv. confidence, and trust, bestowed upon him through Defendants USOC, USAG,

7 FENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 througt: 500.
8 141. Pctendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, und DOES 1 fluouuli 500 weie
0 placed on aclual or constructive notice that the Perpetrator (NASSAR) had maolested ather minnrs

](_)I and participants and mcmbers during his emplavinend wilh Defandants 1ISOC nad DOES |

11 thraugh S0N Dafandanta T1SO(C, YISACG, PENNY, PARITT A, and NOES 1 thraupgh SO0 weara

; .2 12]|| intormed of molestations ot ininors committed by the Perpetrator (NASSAR) prior to Plaintitf¢
‘4 ; 13||| sexual abuse. and of conduct by the Perpetrator (NASSAR) that would put a reasnnable person on
E’Z % 149 notice of such propeusity (o molest and abusce children.
é 5 15 142 Lvon hough Dufendants UDOC. USAU, FENINY, PARILLA, and TXO”R.S 1 through
; i: 16 500 knew or shanld have known of these illicit sexual activitien by the Perpetrator (NASSAR),
53. 17]|] Defiudants USOG. UISACH PENNY, PARILLA, and )OS 1 through S00 did not rcasonably
18 investigale, supervise or monitor the Perpetrator (NASSAR) to ensure the xaletv of the minor
10 participanta annd mcmbers.
20 143, Dcfendauts USOC, USACG, PENNY, PARILLA. and DOES 1 thranghh 500
21 conduct was a breach of theu duties to Plaintiff,
22 |/ 144, Defendants USOC, USAG, I'LNNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, and
23

cach of them, breached iheir duty to Plamtittby, inter alia, by failing 1o adequately monitor and

i supervise the Perpetrator (NASSAR) and stop the Perpetrator (NASSAR) from committing
25 ' wrongful sexual acts with minors including Plaintu(T.

20 145 As aresult of the above-described conduct, PlaintifT has suffered and continues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional

distress including cmbarrassment, toss of scif-esteetn, disgracc, humiliations, and loss of

it
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enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be
prevented [fom performing daily activitics and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
loss of carnings and caming capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.

NEGLIGENCE PER SE-CONDUCT IN VIOLATION OF MANDATED REPORTING
LAWS

146. Under applicable law, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES

1 through 500, by and through their employees and agents, were child care custodians and were
undor a duty to roport known or suspected incidents of sexual molestation oc¢ abuse of iminors o a
child protective agency, and not 10 impede the filing of any such report.

147, Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 knew

or should have known that thcir team physician, the Perpetrator (NASSAR), ond other staff of
Dofendants USOC, ULAG, and DOLG 1 thaough 500, had scaually mulestud, abused or causexl
touching, battery, hanmn, and/or other injuries to mmors, including Plainn((; giving rise to a dugy 1o
report such conduct.

148.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOERS 1 through S00 kncw.
vt shivuld llave known, in the excrcise of reasonahle dfligence, that an undue nsk to minors.

including Plaintiff, existcd beemuse Nefendants USOC, USAQG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES |
throngh SO0 did not comply with California's mandatory reporting requirements.

149. By failing ta repant the continuing molestations and abusc by the Perpetratog

(NANKAR), which Defandnnte 1IQAD, TISAGQ, PENNY, PARILLA, nnd LOLYS 1 tlhuouxh 300
knew U1 should bave known about, and by ignoting the fulfillment of the mandated compliance
with the reporting requirements, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1|
through 500 created the risk and danger contemplatcd by the applicable mandated reporting laws,
and as a result, unreasonably and wrongfully exposed Plaintiff and other minors to scxual
molestation and abuse.

I50.  Plaintiff wax a member of the class of persons for whose protection applicable

mandatcd reporting laws were specifically adopted to protect.

-44.




Karman Ave , Suilc 21

STEWART & FINALZL
«ne, Qaliforria 92¢12

elenbone 1€491207.3CQ)

0 N O Wn &~

10

2
13
11
15
16
17

18

18]
]

[
o

Case 5:18-cv-02479-BLF Document 1-1 Filed 04/25/18 Page 45 of 98

151. Had Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500

adequalely reported the molestation of Plaintiff and other minors as required by applicable

mandated reporting laws, further harm to Plaintiff and other minors wonld have been avoided.

159. As a proximate result of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and
MOES 1 through 500's failure Lo follow the mandatory reporting requirements, Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 wrongfully denied Plaintiff and other

minors the intervention of child protection services. Such public agencies would have changed the
then-cxisting arrangements and conditions that provided the access and oppuriunibies lor the
molesintion of Plaiatiff by the Perperrator (NASSAR).

153. The physical. mental. and emotional damages and injuries resulting trom the sexual
molestation of rlaindff by the Porporeatar (MNASSAIL), waere the type of vecurrence and injuries
that the npplu'nhln mandated reporting laws were designed to prevent.

154. As a resnlt, Nefendants USOIC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through
500 failurc to comply with the moandatory reporting requirciments constitutead o pen s broach of
Defeodunts UUSOC. USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 throuph SO0 duties to FlaintifY.

t5s. Defeadnnt:s USOC, USAG. I'TININY, FARILLA, ciud DOES 1 throuysh SO0, ana
acnctr of thamn, breached their duty o Plaintff by, inter slin, by failing to adequulely monitor and
supcrvise the Paipelrator (NASSAR) and stop the Perpetrutor (NASSAR) ficim commuitting
wrongful scxual acts witliininurs inclading Plainriff,

156, As a result of the above-desceribed conduct, Plaintifl has suffered and continacs tn
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, cmotional distress. phiysical manifestations of ernotional
distrace including  cwibuamrassmient, loxx of scif-cstcau, disgrace, humiltations, and lase of
cnjoyment of life; hns sutlered and continues to suffer and waa prevented and will continuc to be

prevented from pertoriuing dally activities and obtaining the full cnjoyment uf life; will sustain
loss of earni i i i i i i

mings and eaming capacity, and/or has incurred and will continuc to incur expenses for
medical and psycholugical treatment, therapy, and counscling,

NEGI?%EH CAUSE OF ACTION
o GENT HIRING/RETENTION
(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG. PENN
{ 3. PENNY.
DOES 1 through 500) NG PARILLA, and
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157.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporatcs by scference herein each and every allegation
coatained herein abovce as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

158. By virtue of Plaintiff's special relationship with Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILL.A, and DOES ! through 500, and Defendints USOC, UGSAG, PENNY,
PARIILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's rclation to the Perpetrator NASSAR), Defendants USQC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owed Plaintiff a duty to not hire or retain
the Perpetrator (NASSAR), given his dangerous and exploitive propensities, which Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 knew or should have known about

had they engaged in a reasonablc, meaningful and adcquate investigation of her background priot

_to her hiring or retaining her in subscquent positions of employment.

159. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES { through 500
expressly and implicitly represented that the team staff, trainers, and team physicians, including
the Perpetrator (NASSAR), were not a sexual threat to children and others who would fall under
the Perpetrator’s (NASSAR) influence, control, direction, and guidance.

160. At no time during the peiivds of time alleged did Defendants USOC, LISA(],
PENNY, PARILLA, and NOES 1 through 500 have in place a reasonable system ar procedure to

investigate, supervisc and monitor team staff, trainers, and teama physicians, including the

r’crpctmlor (NASSAK), LO prevent pre-sexual proorming or sexual hurassiment, nsolestation and

abuse of children, nor did they implement a system or procedure to oversee or monitor conduct
toward minors, participants and meinbers and others in Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES ] through 500's care.

161. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were
aware or should have been aware and understand how vulnerable children were to sexual
harassment, molestation and abuse by teachers and other persons of authority within the control of
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 3500 prior to Plaintif{’s
sexual abuse by the Pempetrator (NASSAR).

162.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were

put on notice, and should have known that the Perpetrator (NASSAR) had previously engaged and

4.
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continued to engage in unlawful sexual conduct with minors and was comunitting other felonics,
for his own personal gratification, and that )t was, or should have known it would have been
foreseeable that he was engaging, or would engage in illicit sexual activities with Plaintiff, and
others, under the cloak of his authority, confidence, and trust, bestowed upon ber through
Defendauts USOC, JSAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through S00.

163. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were
placed on actual or constructive notice that the Perpetratot (NASSAR) had molested or was
molesting ninors and participants and members, both before his employment withio Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 througly 500, and duting thal ciuployment
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 had knowledge of
inappropriate conduct and molestations cornmitted by the Perpetrator (NASSAR) before and

during his employment, yel chose to allow hitn to ramain unsupervised where she sexually abused

Plaintiff.
164.  Eventhough Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through

500 knew or should have known of these scxuaily illicit activities by the Perpetrator (NASSAR),
Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLES 1 through 500 failed to use reasonable
carc in investigating the Perpctrator (NASSAR) and did nothing to rcasonably investigate,
supervise or monitor the Perpetrator (NASSAR) to ensire the safety of the: minor participants and
members.

165. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's
conducl was a breach of their duties to Plaintiff.

166. As aresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered and continues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, cmotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional
distress including cmbarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations. and loss of
enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be
prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
loss of eamings and earning capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.
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TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
NEGLIGENT FATILURE TO WARN, TRAIN, or EDUCATE
Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG. PENNY, PARILLA., a

DOES 1 through 500

167. Plaintitt re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and cvery allegation
contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

168. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owexl
Plaintiff a duty to take reasonable protective measures to protect Plaintiff and other minor
participants and members from the risk of childhood sexual harassment, molestation and abuse by
the Perpetrator (NASSAR) by properly warmning, training or educating Plaintiff and other about

how 0 avoid such a risk.

169. Dctendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, aud DOES 1 through 500

Lreached their duty 10 ke reusvuublo protective mecasures to protect Plaintiff and ather minor
panticipants and meuibas (ivm the risk of childhood scexual haragament, molestation and abuse by

the Perpetralor INASS AR), such as the failure (o properly waun, train or cducate Plaintift and other

minor participants and members abont how (o avoid sucli a paticalar risk that the Perpetrator

(NASSAR) posed—of sexual misconduct.

170. Dectendants USOC, LISACG, PENNYV, PARIILI.A, and DOES 1 through $00
breached their duly v tuke jeassouable protective measurcs to protect Plaintitt aod other minor
participanrs and members from the risk of childhood scauval Liacassiment, molestation and abusc by
the Perpetrator (NASSAR), by fajling 10 supervise and stop cmployees of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, including the Perpetrator (NASSAR), from
cammitting wrongfirl sexual acts with minors, including Plainti ff,

171.  As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered and contijnues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional
distress including embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations. and loss of
enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be
prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
loss of camings and earning capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counscling.
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ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
SEXUAL BATTERY: Civil Code § 1708.5
(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against DEFENDANT NASSAR)

172. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference hercin cach and every allegation
contained herein above as though fully set forth und brought in this cause of action.

173.  NASSAR, in domng the things herein alleged, including intending to subject
Plaintift to numerous instances of sexual abuse and harassment by NASSAR, during Plamtiffs
time with USAG and USOC, beginning on or around 2010 to in or around 2012, und in or around
2015, including but not Jimited to instances of NASSAR groping and fondling the Plaintift’s
vagina all whilc NASSAR acted in the course and scope of his agency/cinployment with

Defendants, and each of them and were intended to cause harmful or offensive contact with

Plaintiffs person, and did causc such banmful or offensive contact.

174. NASSAR did the aforecmentioned ucts with the intent to cavse n harmtul or
offcnsive contuct with an intimate part af Plaintill™s person. and would ottend a reasonabie scnse
uf personal dignity. Further, said acte did cause a2 harmful or oftensive contact with an intimate
part of PlaintifT s persoa that would offend a rcasonable senac of personal dignity.

175. Becausc of NASSAR s position of authority over Plaintiff, and Plainliff's mental
and cmatinnal atnte, and Plaintiffs young age under the age ol consent, Plaintitt was unable to,

and did not, give meaningful consent to such acts.
176. As a dircct. Icgal and proximate result of the acts of NASSAR, Plaintift sustained

serious and penmanent tguries o her person. all of his damage in an amournt to be shown according

to proof and within the jurisdiction of1he Court.

I77.  As a direct result of the sexual abuse by NASSAR, Plaintiff has difficulty in
reasonably or meaningfully interacting with others, including those in positions of authority over
Plaintifl” including teachers, and supervisors, and in confidential, business, and familia)
relationships, due to the trauma of childhood sexual abuse inflicted upon her by NASSAR. This
inability to interact creates conflict with Plaintiff's values of trust and confidence in others, and

has caused Plaintift substantial cmotional distress, anxiety, nervousness and fear, As a direct result

of the sexual abuse and harassment by NASSAR, Plaintiff suffered immensely, including, but not
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1 I WHERLEFORE, Plaintiff prays for a jury trial and for judgment against Defendants as
) follows:

3 | FOR ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

4 1. For past, present and future non-economic damages in an amount to be

5 I determined al trial;

6 2 For past, present and future special damages, including but not limited to past,
7 present and future lost eamings, economic damages and others, in an amount to be determined at
8 trial.
) 3 Any appropriatc statutory damages;
\()l A% For coste of suit;
1 iSi. Punitive damapgces, according to proof, though not as to the Negligence Causes of
1 2| Action (Clauses of Action 7,8, 9, und 10),
13| 6. For interest based on damages. as well as pre-judgunent and post-judgment
l4| intciest as allowed by law;
15 7. I'or attorney’s fees pursuant to Califormia Code of Civr! Mrocedure scctions
16 1021 .5, ¢t seey., or us othenwine allowabile by Jaw;
17 5. For dccelaratory and injunctive relief, including but not himited to court
18| aupervision of Defendants UUSAGH and LSO nndd
19] 0. For suchother and further ralief as the Court may decmn proper.
2Q
21 [ Dated: February 28, 2018 MANLY. STEWAR'T & FINALDI
22
23 By: —
24| Attorncys for Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN
25
26
27
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS AS TO THE PARTIES

I This casc arises from the serial molestation, sexual abuse and harassment of ALY
RAISMAN, three-time Olympic gold medalist, by her trusted team physician and former Olympic
Team Doctor Defendant Lawrence “Larry” Gerard Nassar (“NASSAR™), while ALY RAISMAN
was a young girl and woman, competing for the honor of her country. These molestations of the
Plaintiff occurred over several continents, on numerous occasions, and could have been prevented,
had Defendants USA Gymnastics (“USAG”), the United States Olympic Committee (“USOC”) or
tormer president of USAG, Defendant STEVE PENNY (“PENNY”) had taken the mandatc of
ALY RAISMAN’s safety, and numerous other minors in their care, seriously. Despite having
knowledge that NASSAR had been sexually abusive towards minor, been left in solitary contact
with minor girls, and having been notified that NASSAR was a pcdophile (or could have leamed
of such through reasonable diligence), Defendants USAG, USOC, PENNY and DOES ! through
500 instcad put their quest for money and medals, above the safety of the Plaintiff and other minor
competitive athletes; athietes who were responsible for the financial success and prosperity of
those Defendants. The Plaintiff, ALY RAISMAN, began her gymnastics carcer at the tender age
of two (2) years old, and gained her inspiration from watching and re-watching a VHS tape of the
“Magnificent Scven” at the 1996 Olympics held in Atlanta, Georgia and who won the Women'’s
Team Final. Since that time, ALY RAISMAN dedicated her childhood to the pursuit of honoring
that legacy, competing in the Olympics, and winning a gold medal for her country. The Plaintiff
accomplished this monumental goal by the age of eightcen (18) years old, all while being serially
molested by her confidant and trusted physician, NASSAR, under the watch of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY and DOES 1 through 500.

2. Despite having the power, authority, and mandate to do so, the Dcfendants USAG,
USOC, PENNY and DOES 1 through 500 never intervened to disciplinc Defendant NASSAR,
never cnsured that Defendants (JSAG and NASSAR were following Defendant USOC rules and
mandates, and through the cxpress disregard for the safety of minors, allowed Defcndant NASSAR
to continue in his position of trust, power and access to ALY RAISMAN, as well as numerous

"
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other elite minor athletcs who competed with ALY RAISMAN. After Detendant NASSAR was
only finally removed from his position at USAG, he continued to sexually abuse minors in his role
as a physician for over a year.

3. To this day, ALY RAISMAN continues ta suffer depression, anxiety and fear
steruning from her abuse by Defendant NASSAR, which affects her daily life, including but not
limited to the Plaintiff not trusting medical professionals, not trusting adult malcs, and constantly
suftering from feelings of fear, anxicty, and depression. Jn addition to this psychojogical and
physical trauma suffered by ALY RAISMAN, the Plaintiff continued to train for years in pain,
believing that Defendant NASSAR was properly treating her physical ailments associated with her
sport. When she was young, ALY RAISMAN always felt guilty for thinking NASSAR was weitd,
and questioned why she did not like the purported best rymnastics doctor in the world, though she
did not understand the purported medical treatment she was receiving, at that time, was sexual
abuse. Upon lcarning that this was not legitimate treatment, the Plaintiff suffered further
humiliation, guilt, shame, and disgust.

THE PLAINTIFF
ALY RAISMAN

4. The Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN is now a young adult female who currently resides
in the State of Massachusetts, who was born on May 25, 1994. The Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN was
formerly an elite minor gymnast who wus sexually abused by NASS AR believing this was medical
treatment, while competing in National and Intemationa! Compctitions, including but not limiied
to competitions in California, Jupan, the Karolyi Ranch in Huntsville, Tcxas (and other locations
across the United States and internationally, including in Europe, Asia and Australia) (hat were
hosted, sanctioned. supervised, and/or endorsed by, under the supervision ol chartered, and/ot
under the mandate of Defendants USAG, USOC, and DOES | through 500. During many of thesc
cvents, the Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, and DOES 1 through 500, took care, custndy and
control of Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and stood in loco parentis with her and her parents.
Defendants USOC, PENNY and USAG had 4 duty to protect ALY RAISMAN from known or

foreseeable dangers, such as Defendant NASSAR, and to promptly investigate, censure, discipline

A
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and/or remove Defendant NASSAR; and/or take remedial actions; actions they never took until
after the cessation of ALY RAISMANs abuse.

< The Plaintiff was an elitc level gymnast and member of Team USA who competed
and trained in Nationa) and International competitions on hehalf of the United States. These
National and Intemational competitions and trainings occurred in places including, but not limited
to: Santa Clara County in California, the “Karolyi Ranch” located in Huntsville, Texas and other
locations across the United States and intcrmationally, including the most elite competitions
occurred in Asia, Australia, and Europe. During many of these competitions, the Plaintift was
subjected to sexual harassment, sexual assault, scxual abuse and molestation by Defendant
NASSAR, including but not limited to competitions and trainings that occurred in Santa Clara
County in California, at the Karolyi Ranch in Huntsville, Tcxas, in Japan, and other locations
across the United States and internationally, including Europe and Australia. The Plaintiff was
sexually abused on numecrous occasions and at numcrous locations in or around 2010 through in
or around 2012, and in 2015. This sexual abuse of the Plaintiff occurred at cvents where
Detendants USAG, USOC, PENNY and DOES 1 through 500 were responsible to supervise the
Plaintiff, ensure proper medical procedures and protocols were followed, warn the Plaintiff of
known dangers, and to provide for her salety.

6. This action is brought pursvant to Code of Civil Procedure §340.1, which governs
the statutes of limitations arising from childhood sexual abuse. As a victim of childhood sexual
abuse, and a young adult under the age of 26 years old, thus, ALY RAISMAN’s action is imcly.

DEFENDANTS
DEFENDANT, UNITED STATES OLYMPIC COMMITTEE (“USOC”)

7 Defendant USOC, at all times mentioned herein, was and is a business entity of
form unknown, having its principal place of business in the State of Colorado and is headquancred
in Colorado Springs, Colorado. The USOC is a [ederally chattered nonprofit corporation, which
was reorganized by the Ted Stcvens Amatcur Sparts Act, originally enacted in 1978. As advertised
on its website, “[t]he USOC has two primary responsibilitics io its oversight of Olympic and

Paralympic sport in the United States. The first is to generate resources in support of its mission,
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which is to help American athletes achieve sustained competitive excellence. The second is to
cnsure organizational rcsources are wisely and effectively used to that end.” Furthenmore,
Defendant “...USOC is committed to creating a safe and positive enviropmeot for athletes’
physical, emotional and social developmest and to ensuring that it promotes an environment
free of misconduct.” Under the Ted Stevens Amateur Sports Act, 36 U.S.C. §§220501, ef seq.
(hereinafler, “Ted Stevens Act”) Defendant USOC had a mandatory obligation to ensure that
before granting NGBs, including USAG, a sanction to host National or [ntcrnational events, that
they provide “proper mecdical supervision will be provided for athletes who will participate
in the competition.” 36 US C. §§220525(b)(4)(E).

3. For in or around 2011 through the cessation of the Plaintiff’s sexual abuse by
Defendant NASSAR, the “Karolyi Ranch” was designated as being the United States® Olympic
Training Center, thus, was required to follow all protocols, mandates, policies, bylaws, rules,
and/or practices of Defendant USOC (as well as Defendant USAG).

9. During all relevant times during ALY RAISMAN’s abuse, Defendant USOC was
responsible for ensuring that the Karolyi Ranch, provided adequate supervision for the minors
competing thereat, reasonable safety protocols ensuring the safety of those minors, and reasonable
supervision, training, and oversight procedures for all medical care provided to gymnasts at the
Karolyi Ranch, including training of staff on identification of sexual abuse, proper procedurcs, use
of proper medical care, and staffing of ample medical personnel to ensure proper care of all minor
gymnasts, including the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN. Despite these duties under the law, Defendant
USOC implemented virtually no safety protocols or procedures at the Karolyi Ranch, and tailed
to provide any supervision for minor gymnasts training at the Karolyi Ranch.

10. At all times relevant to the Plaintiff’s sexual abuse at the hands of NASSAR,
Defendant USOC: was responsible for the Plaintiff’s supervision while competing at the Olympics,
the Olympic Trials, and the World Artistic Gymnastics Championships and trainings for such.
Despite being the body responsible for the Plaintiff's safety during thesc events, including, being
responsible for her supervision, medical carc, and well-being, Defendant USOC provided entirely

inadequate or etfective measures to ensure her protection from the risk of sexual abuse, either at
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the events orin her living quarters, where sexual abuse by NASSAR occurred. Despite competing
in Australia, Japan, the United Kingdom and the Netherlands (among other international sites), the
Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN was either provided no supervision while medicat treaiment was
performed in her living quarters by NASSAR or USAG employee Debbie Van Hom was present
for such treatment. Bascd on infonmation, and therefore beljef, despite Ms. Van Hom being
represented as a qualified medical professional, she was not properly trained to supervise
NASSAR, not given mandate to do so, and was otherwise present for sexually abusive treatments
that NASSAR would perform, without reporting such to law enforcement or the proper authoritics.
This ts how and why NASSAR was allowed solitary access to these minors, including the Plaintiff
ALY RAISMAN, or altematively, was allowed to abuse mipors (such as the Plaintiff) in the
presence of USAG staff (Ms. Van Hom).

1. In 2010, during the Plaintiff ALY RATSMAN’s sexual abuse at the hands of
NASSAR, Defendant USOC convened what it termed the “Working Group for Safe Training
Environments” in order to address, among many things, physical and sexnal abuse of amatcur
athletes in National Govermning Bodies (“NGB™). It was not until 2011, afler this commission met,
that Defendant USOC hired an individual to head its “SafeSport” program and not until 2012 that
a “SafeSport” Handbook was adopted and promulgated safeguards and safcty protections for
minor athletes, from the ravages of sexual abuse. Despite only instituting these SafeSport policies
in 2012, Defendant USOC was acutely aware of the ravages of sexual abuse posed to minors in
amateur sports, for at lcast a decade prior to this SafeSport program being created, as they
were informed by former Defendant USAG President, Robert “Bob' Colarossi. See infra.

12.  As a rcquirement for NGBs, such as Defendant USAG, to remain in “good
standing” with Detendant USOC, Defendant USOC policies require that USAG *...1) comply with
the safe sport policies of the corporation and with the policies and procedures of the independent
safe sport organization designated by the corporation to enhance safe sport practices and to
investigate and resolve safe sport violations (no €xceptions to this requirement shall be aflowed
unless granted by the CEQ, or his or her designee, after allowing the [NGB] or PSO to present the

reasons for such exception)...” The Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges,
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that the Sale Sport program was introduced in or around 2011, and that such policies have become

more stringent over the years. Nevertheless, the Defendant USOC continued to fail to adequately
enforce these policies against Defendant NASSAR, and has continually failed to uphold said
policies (hrough proper reporting, supervision, mandates on NGBs (including Defendant USAG),
and other preventative procedures. Cven as the SateSport policies stale today herein, Defendant
USOC still failed to uphold these policies and proccdures, had they been in-place at the
commencement of ALY RAISMAN's sexual abuse. Defendant USOC has and had a culture and
atmosphere that conceals known and suspected sexual abusers, which transcends all policies and
procedures that arc sct in-place. For this reason, Defendant USOC has a practice and culture of
ignoring its own internal rules and mandates for NGBs, in arder to protect its reputation and blind
itsclf to known abusers within the ranks of NGBs for which it is responsible.

13.  Moreover, the Defendant UUSOC currently promulgates the SafeSport policies that
prevent “...USOC cmployees, coaches, contracted staff, volunteers, board inembers, committee
and task force members, and other individuals working with athletes or other sport participants
while at an OTC, whether or not they arc emplayees of the USOC” and “...[a]thlctes training
and/or residing at a USOC Olympic Training Center” from engaging in sexually abusjve
misconduct, including “child sexual abuse” and “sexual misconduct.” See USOC Safe Sport
Policjes, Section 1l(c). SafeSport policy also has policics for identifying “grooming” behaviors,
which it defines as, “.,.the most common strategy used by offenders to seduce their victims.”

14.  Subsequent to sometime in 2012, Plaintiff is informed and believes and on that
basis alleges that these policies (or prior versions that were similar or less restrictive) were in effect
at Detendant USOC, and applied to Defendant USAG. Despite the existence of these policies after
2012, Defendant USOC allowed Defendant NASSAR to continue to participate with minor
children at Defendant USAG, the NGB for Women’s Gymnastics, and tailed to adeguately enforcc
these policies, or mandate that Defendant USAG enforce these policies. Due to its systemic and
knowing failurc to enforce these policics, the Plaintiff was sexually harassed, abused, and molested
by Defendant NASSAR; an individual who was subject to these policies. Plaintiff is informed, and

on that basis, believes that Defendant USAG was at all times in “good standing” with Defendant

gk
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USOC, despite failing to adhere to, and cnforce the SafeSport policies, which it violated by
allowing Defendant NASSAR access to minor gymsasts, including the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN.
Furthermore, in failing to report suspected child abuse of Defendant NASSAR and/or failing to
enforce policics and proceduces to prevent said scxual abuse of minors, the Defendant USOC
prevented the Plaintiff and her parents from avoiding the scxual abuse of the Plaintiff and/or
ceasing 1t sooner.

15. Further, Detendant USOC was required to ensure that NGBs, including Defendant
USAG, ensure that “proper safety precautions have beca taken to protect the personal welfarc
of the athletics and spectators at the competition.” 36 U S.C. §§220525(b)(4)(F). Moreover, as
patt of an NGB’s mandate from the Defendant USOC, it was to, “encourage and support
research, developnient, and dissemination of information in the areas of sports medicine and
sports safety.” 36 U.S.C. §220524(9). Had Defendant USOC performed its mandatc rcasonably,
diligently, and in accord with its duty to protect minor children under both Federal and California
Law, Defendunt NASSAR would have been investigated, sanctioned, and/or rcmoved from
Defendants USAG, USOC, and others, and never have been placed in solitary contact with the
Plaintiff. Defendant USOC never adequalcly or reasonably enforced thesce policies, thus, the sexual
abuse perpetrated by Defendant NASSAR on the Plaintiff] as well as hundreds of other minor girls,
was a natural, probablc and fureseeable outgrowth of Defendant USOC's dereliction ot its duties.
Defendant USOC willfully blinded itself and its officers, agents, employees, and scrvanis, to
ruvages of sexual abuse that were rampant in arpateur sports and in organizations for which it was
responsihle to supervise, including Defendant USAG.

16. In March of 2017, under the United States Senale Judiciary Committee’s inquiry
into the failure of the Defendants USAG and USQOC in protecling gymnasts from sexual assault,
specifically centered around Defendant NASSAR, the Defendant USOC's president publicly
admitled, “[t]he Olympic community failed the people it was supposed to protect.”

17. Plaintiff is informed, and believes, and on that basis alleges that Defendant USOC
was awarg, at the highest levels of its organization, that Defendant NASSAR had molested

Olympian and National Team level gymnasts who participated with Defendant USAG, an NGB
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under Defendant USOC’s charter, while Defendant NASSAR was permitted to return to his
medical practice at Michigan State University (“MSU”) without MSU being warned, advised or
otherwise contacted by Defendants USOC or USAG regarding Defendant USOC's knowledge of
NASSAR’s sexual abuse of elite, minor gymnasts. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that
basis alleges that despite having actual knowledge of Defendant NASSAR’s molestation of minor
gymnasts as early as 2015, Dcfendant USOC concealed their involvement with Defendant USAG,
concealed its knowledge of Defendant NASSAR’s sexual misconduct with minor children, and
ultimately, misdirected the United States Senate into believing that Defendant USOC had only
failed to protect minor gymnasts through lack of oversight. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and
on that basis alleges, that Defendant USOC knew that NASSAR had been removed from
Delendant USAG for allegations of child molestation as early as 2015 (as it was Defendant
USOC’s custom and practice to necessarily leamn of reports of child molestation by a NGB
employee, like thosc made to Defendant USAG in 2015) given that Defendant USOC was
responsible for the supervision of Defendant UUSAG. Nonetheless, Defendant UUSOC had
representatives present al the March 2017 Senate Judiciary Cormunittee Hearing and concealed their
prior knowledge of Defendant NASSAR being a pedophile and sexual abuser; leaving the
Senators, those present, and the public with the false impression that Defendant USOC simply
fasled to implement proper procedures to prevent abusc. During this hearing, and as carly as 2015,
Defendants USOC, USAG and PENNY had knowledge that Defendant NASSAR had abused
young girls, and that he continued to sexually abuse young girls for over another year at MSU,
without notifying, informing, or otherwise cornmunicating this knowledge to MSU.

18.  Under Califomia Penal Code § 11165.7, Defendant USOC is an organization
whose employecs, agents, and/or servants are legally “mandated reportcrs”, considering that
Decfendant USOC is a youth recreational program and Detendant USOC’s empluyces’ duties
require direct contact and supervision of children.

DEFENDANT, USA GYMNASTICS (“USAG™)
19. USAG, atall times mentioned herein, was and is a business entity of form unknown,

having its principal place of business in the State of Indiana. Plaintiff is informed and believes

Q.
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and on that basis alleges that USAG was incorporated in the statc of Texas and/or Anzona.
Defendant USAG is the NGB for gymnastics in the United States, as designated and permitted by
Dcfendant USOC under the Ted Stevens Amateur Sports Act, and selects and trains the United
States gymnastics teams for the Olympics and World Championships, promotes and develops
gymnastics locally and nationally, and serves as a resource center for members, clubs, fans and
gymnasts throughout the United States. USAG has more than 174,000 athletes and professional
members, more than 148,000 athletes registered in competitive programs, as well as more than
25,000 professional, instructor and club members. Approximately 4,000 competitions and events
throughout the United States are sanctioned annually by USAG. USAG waus the primary entity
owning, operating and controlling the aclivities and behavior of its employee agents, including,
but not limited to NASSAR. USAG is also the entity that selects gymnasts for the US National
and Olympic Teams.

20. The bylaws of Defendant USAG, or simjlar bylaws previously enacted, were made
in conformance and under the mandate of Defendant USOC, and were intentioned at protecting
minor gymnasts, including ALY RAISMAN from the ravages of sexual abuse, molestation and
hurassment; a known, foresceable and palpable risk poscd to minor athletes in amateur sports.
Nevertheless, despite these bylaws, rules, policies and procedures purportedly being in effect at
Defendant USAG, Defendant USOC never ensured, audited or checked to confimm that these
policies were effcctive and being implemented properly, adequately and in conformance with the
standard of carc. Had Defendant USOC upheld its duties under Federal Law (specitically, the Ted
Stevens Act) in ensuring National Tcam members, including the Plaintitt ALY RAISMAN, werc
provided proper nmedical care and supervision, and (hat they were properly supervised at
competitions and the National Training Center (the Karolyi Ranch in Huntsville, Texas), then the
dozens of molestations suffered by ALY RAISMAN and numecrous other gymnasts could have
been avoided.

21, Under California Pena) Code § 1 1165.7, USAG 1s an organization whose

employees, agents, and/or servants are legally “mandated reporters”, considetng that Defendant
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USAG is a youth recreational prograim and USAG’s employees” duties require dircct contact and

supervision of children.

DEFENDANT, STEPHEN “STEVE” PENNY
22 Defendant STEVE PENNY (hereinafter “PENNY”) at all times mentioned berein
was and is an adult male individual, who Plaintiff is informed and believes lived in the State of

Indiana during the period of time during which the sexual abuse and harassment alleged herein

took place and is currently a citizen of the State of Indiana. Defendant PENNY was the President

of Defendant USAG charged with the overall management and strategic planning for the
organization. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, on tha basis, alleges that Defendant PENNY
oversaw a wide-ranging, calculated concealment of numerous instances, complaints, and
allegations of sexual abuse and misconduct among the participants and members of Delendant
USAG. Through this conduct, Defendant PENNY’s actions and inactions enabled and rafified the
sexual abuse by Defendunt NASSAR against Plaintiff and other participants and members of
Defendant TISAG and fucled the ongoing concealment of abuse at Defendiant USAG, making it
more unlikely for victims (such as the Plaintiff) to obtain much needed wedical and/or
psychological treatment. Plaintiff is informed and belicves that Defendant PENNY served as
President of Defendant USAG from in or around 2005 to 2017. AL ull times herein alleged,
Defendant PENNY was an employee, agent, and/or scrvant of Defendant USAG, and/or was under
their complcte control and/or active supervision.
DEFENDANT, PAUL PARILLA

23.  Defendant PAUL PARILLA (hercinafier “PARILLA™) at all times mentioned
herein was and is an adult male individual, who PlaintifTis informed and beheves lived in the State
of California, County of Orange, during the period of time during which the sexual abuse and
harassment of ALY RAISMAN by NASSAR alleged herein took place and is currently a citizen
of'the State uf California. Defendant PARILLA was a board member of USAG from in or around
1999 to 2018, and wus Chairman of the USAG board from approximately 2013 to 1p or around
January of 2018. Plaintiff is informed and belicves and, on that basis, alleges that Defendant

PARILLA oversaw a wide-ranging, calculated concealment of pumetous instances, complaints

17
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and allegations of sexual abusc and misconduct among the participants and members of Defendant

—

USAG. Through this conduct, Defendant PARILLA’s actions and inactions enabled and ratified

A9}

3 the sexual abusc by Defendant NASSAR against Plaintiff and other participants and membcrs of
4 Defendant USAG and fueled the ongoing concealment of abuse at Defendant USAG, making it
5 more unlikely for victims (such as the Plaintiff) to obtain much needed medical and/or
6 psychological treatment. Plaintiff is informed and belicves that Defendant PARILLA served as

7 Chairman of the Board from 2015 to present. At all times hercin alleged, Defendant PARILLA

8 was an employee, agent, and/or servant of Defendant USAG, and/or was under (heir complete
9 control and/or active supervision.

10 DEFENDANT, LARRY NASSAR

11 24. Dcfendant NASSAR, the Perpetrator, at all times mentioned herein was and is an

12 || adult male individual, who lived in the State of Michigan during the period of time during which
13 || the sexual ahuse, harassment, and molestation of the Plaintift alleged herein took place and is
14 || currently a citizen of the State of Michigan. Plaintifl'is informed and believes that the NASSAR
1S || was accepted onto the staff of USAG as a trainer in 1986 and then as the National Medical Director
16 || and the National Teom Physician for the women’s gymnastics team in 1996. NASSAR was also
17 || responsible for coordinating the care for USAG and for participants und members at every national
18 || and intcmational coripetition, and would routinely travel to National and International
19 || competitions. NASSAR continued to function in this capacity at USAG until in or around the
20 || middle of 2015. Moreover, it is upon information and belief, that as the National Teamn Doctor {or

21 |l USAG, which was chartered via Defendant UUSOC, NASSAR was the individual rcsponsible for

22 | maintaining LUSAG’s compliance with the medical requirements, policies and procedures sct forth

23 || by Defendant USOC. Nevertheless, Defendant USOC failed to provide supervision, oversight, and

25 || retained by Defendants USAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 as an
26 || Osteopathic Physician and certified athletic trainer to provide care, treatment, and athielic training

27 || to the Defendants USAG and USOC, and its participants, many of which were minors while in his

28 || care, It was through this position of trust and confidence, that Defendant NASSAR exploited ALY
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RAISMAN, in perpetrating his sexual abuse and harassment upon her. All of the sexually abusive
and harassing conduct alleged hercin was done for Defendant NASSAR's sexual gratification and
was based upon the gender of ALY RAISMAN.

25, It is on information and reasonable belicf that NASSAR, using his apparent
authority and position within Defendant USAG and USOC over the minor participants in his
charge, that Defendant NASSAR sexually abused and harassed multiple other mermbers of the
United Statcs Women’s Olympic Gymnastics Team and National teams, over the ncarly 30 ycars
m which Defendant NASSAR has been affiliated wilh Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES |
through 500.

26. At all times hercin alleged, NASSAR was an cmployee, agent, and/or servant of
USAG, Defendant USOC, and DOES | through 500, and/or was under their complete control
and/or aclive supervision.

A7) In thc event DOE | be prosecuted and convicted of a felony for the conducted
alleged herein, the Plaintit requests leave to amend the instant Complaint, such that a request for
attomeys’ fees can be made against DOE 1 pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.4.

DEFENDANTS, DOF. 1 THROUGH 500

28.  Defendants DOES 1 through 500, inclusive, and cach of them, are sued herein
under said [ictitious namcs. Plaintif{ is ignorant as to the true names and capacities of DOES |
through 500, whelher individual, corporate, associate, or otherwise, and thercfore sue suid
Defendants by such fictitious names. When their true names and capacities are ascertained,
Plaintift will request leave of Court to amend this Complaint to state their true names and capacitics
hereis.

29.  Detendants USOC, USAG, NASSAR, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through
500, inclusive, are sometimes collectively referred to hercin as “Defendants” and/or as "All
Detendants"; such collective reterence refers to all specifically named Defendants as well as those
fictitiously named hercin.

30. Plaintiff is informed and believe, and on that basis, allege that at all times

mentioned hercin, each Defendant was responsible in some manner or capacity for the occurrences
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herein alieged, and that Plaintiff's damages, as herein alleged, were proximately causcd by all said

Defendants.

31. At all times mentioned herein, each and every Defendant NASSAR was an
employee, agent, and/or servant of USAG, Defendant USOC, and DOES 1 through 500, inclusive,
and/or was under their complete control and/or active supervision. Defendants and each of them
arc individuals, corporations, partnerships and/or other entitics that engaged in, joined in, and
conspired with other Defendants and wrongdocrs in carrying out the tortuous aml unlawful
activities described in this Complaint.

32.  Plaintiff is informed and believe, and on (hat basis, allege that at all times
mentioned herein, there existed a unity of interest and ownership among Defendants and each of
them such that any individuality and separateness between Defendants, and each of them, ceased
to exist. Defendants and each of them were the successors-in-interest and/or alter egos of the other
Defendants, and each of them, in that they purchased, controlled. dominated and operated each
other without any separate identity, observation of tonmalitics, or other manner of division. To
continue maintaining the facade of a separate and individual existence between and amoung
Dcfendants, and each of them, would serve to perpetrate a fraud and injustice.

LRY Plaintiff is informed and bLelieves, and on that basis, alleges that at all times
mentioned herein, Defendants USOC, USAG, NASSAR, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES |
throngh S00 were the agents, repiesentatives and/or employces of cach and other. In domg the
things hereinafter alleged, Defendants and each of them were acting within the course and scope
of said alternative personality, capacity, identity, agency, represcntation and/or employment and
were within the scope of their authority, whether actual or apparent.

34.  Plainiiff is informed and believes, and on thal basis alleges that al all times
mentioned herein, Defendants USOC, USAG, NASSAR, PENNY, PARIT.ILA, and DOES 1
through 500 were the (rustees, partners, scrvants, joint venturers, shareholders, contractors, and/or
employees of each other, and the acts and omisstons bercin alleged were done by them, acting

individually, through such capacity and within the scope oft heir authority, and with the permission
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and consent of each and every other Dcfendant and that said conduct was theseafter ratified by

each and evcry other Defendant, and that each of them is jointly and severally liable to Plaintiff.

SEXUAL ABUSE OF ALY RAISMAN AND RESULTING LIFELONG DAMAGES
ants’ institutions, Defendants and NASSAR

35. By his position within the Defend

demanded and required that Plaintiff respect Defendant NASSAR, in his position as team

physician for USAG, authorized by usocC.
36. NASSAR did sexually abuse, harass and molest the ALY RAISMAN, who was a

minor child at the time of the acts at-issue.

37.  The sexual harassment and abuse of Plaintiff by the Perpetrator (NASSAR),
outlined belaw, took place while Defendant the Perpetrator (NASSAR) was the team physician of
Dcfendant USAG and under the control of Defendants USOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES )
through 500. Plaintiff was a participant and member of Defendants USAG, USOC, and DOFS 1
throngh 500, while the Perpetrator (NASSAR) was serving as an agent and employec of

Defendants in his capacity as team physician:

a. In his capacity as a team physician with Delendants USOC, USAG, and DOES |
through 500, the Pecrpetrator (NASSAR) was given custody and supervision of
minors, including Plaintiff. The Perpetrator (NASSAR) used this position to coerce
children to concede to his sexual suggestions, using his authority and position of
trust to exploit them physically, sexually, and emotionally;

b. Plaintiff becamc a member and participant of USAG, and a part of the Junior
National Team for USAG in 2009. Plaintiff soon formed a relationship with the
Perpetrator (NASSAR), USAG’s team physician. At this time, in or around 2010,
the Perpetrator NASS AR) commenctd (he process of “grooming” Plaintiff for later
physical, sexval and emotional abuse. Plaintift' is informed and believes the
Perpetrator NASSAR) would use the guise of care, athletic training, ostcopathy,
and kincsiology to normalize intimate, inappropriatc, and scxually abusive contact
with Plaintiff. Plaintiff is informed and bejieves (he Perpetrator (NASSAR) would
enter the living quarters of the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and other gymnasts at the
Karolyi Ranch, hotcl rooms at meets, in training rooms, and at other locations,
placing Plaintiff under the impression this inappropriate contact was part of
treatment. During this period, Plaintiff was a patient under the Perpetrator’s
(NASSAR) direct supervision and control.

¢. Plaintiff is informed and believes the Perpelrator's (NASSAR) physical and sexual
abusc of Plaintiff commenced after the grooming of Plaintiff began, and occurred
dozens of times whilc the tcam was traveling and before and alter competitive
meets from in or around 2010 to 20}2, and in or around 2015. Specifically, the
Plaintiff was sexually abused by NASSAR in Texas at the Karolyi Ranch, in Santa
Clara County in Califomia, and at numerots locations around the country, as well
as internationally in Australia, Japan, in the United Kingdom and in the
Netherlands. During this period, Plaintiff was a participant, member, and paticnt
under the Perpetrator’s (NASSAR) and Defendants’ direct supervision and control.
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Using his position as team physiciar:i 1hcl Perpch'at%rt(?ﬂﬁfgrﬁ&)letgglﬁ ;lflz;;r‘e:g
i intt 1 g iding re and tr v :
with Plaintiff under the guise of providing her care an¢
lol cmchte as a worll(:i-class, Olympic meldal-‘;vin_mgg gﬁm&ait;l Er:zldire'\trhfﬁg
i 1ces, the Perpetrator (NASSAR) placed his bare hand on an a
F}rzﬁﬁﬁftf: unclothed valgina and anus, on multiple occaslons, 1n Plamn‘(ﬁ S assllzgncd
living quarters, without any supervision or a chaperone. Further, _NASSA o onl
numerous occasions, had an crection while perfonmed the cla{med mIedlca
treatment. Plaintiff is informed and believes that tHe Perpetrator's (I\LA.S‘SAR)f
sexual abuse, molestation, and harassment of Plaintiff occurred on the premises of
Defendants USAG, USOC, in hotels around the world., and various ch_er locations
including, but not limited to in living quarters, n training acilities, in gyros.

38. Plaintitf is informed and believes, and on that hasis alleges, that such conduct by
Defendant NASSAR was based upon Plaintift’s gender, and was done for Defendant NASSAR's
sexual gratification. These actions upon ALY RAISMAN werce performed by Defendant NASSAR
without the lrce consent of Plaintiff, as ALY RAISMAN was a young child, and could thercfore

not give valid legal consent.

39. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was a minor patticipant and niember of
Defendant USAG, USOC and DOES 1 through 500, and was under their complete control,
dominion, and supervision. Defendant NASSAR worked for, was employed by, and-an
agenvscrvant of Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES |} through 500 when NASSAR came into
contact with ALY RAISMAN,

40. At all times matcrial hereto, Defendant NASSAR was under the direct supervision,
management, agency and control of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES
1 through 500, inclusive. Defendant NASSAR was the team physician of Defendant USAG and
for Team USA, under the dominion of Defendant USOC. While a tcam physician at Defendant
USAG, NASSAR’s employment duties included coordinating the care for Defendant USAG at
cvery national and international compelition, providing individual care and providing for the
physical nceds and well-being of participants and members of Defendant USAG (and in accord
with Defendant USOC policies, procedures, and mandates), and care including but not limited to
osteopathic adjustments and kinesiology trcatment to participants and members of Defendant
USAG, which included ALY RAISMAN. ALY RAISMAN was a participant and member of

Defendant USAG, and it is under these circumstances that ALY RAISMAN came to be under the

TR - -[6-
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direction and control of Defendant NASSAR, who uscd lis position of authority and trust to molest

and scxually abuse ALY RAISMAN.
41.  As amember and participant of Defendant USAG and USOC while NASSAR was

a team physician, the ALY RAISMAN was under Defendant NASSAR’s direct supervision,
control and care, which created a special, confidential, and fiduciary relationship between ALY
RAISMAN;, her parents, and Dcfendant NASSAR. Becanse of such relationship, Defendant
NASSAR awed Plaintiff a special duty of carc. Additionally, as the employers and supervisors of
NASSAR, with knowledge that he was in contact with and providing care to children, Defendants
USAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were also 1n a special, conlidential,
and fiduciary relationship with Plaintiff, owing her a duty of care.

42. By assigning Defendant NASSAR us tcam physician of Defendant USAG under
the mandated and control of Defendants USOC and DOES | through 500, Defendant USOC
represented 1o the community and participants and members of Detendant USAG that NASSAR
was sate, trustworthy, and of high morat and clhical repute, such that parcnts of participants and
members need not worry about having NASS AR interact with, and provide carce to their minor
children. Defendants did so in order to preserve their own public image and rcputation, so they
could retain past participants and members and recruit new participants and members, thus
allowing donations and other financial support to coutinue fiowing into their coffers for financial
gain.

43 Plintfis informed and believes, and on that basis, alleges that Defendants USAG,
USOC and DOES | through 500 knew or should have known that Defendant NASSAR had
engaged in unlawful sexually-related conduct jn the past, and/or was continuing to engage in such
conduct. Defendants had a duty to disclose these facts to ALY RAISMAN and her parents, but
negligently and/or intentionally suppressed, concealed or failed to disclose this information. The
duty to disclose this inforination arose by the special, trusting, confidential, fiduciary relationship
between Defendants and Plaintiff.

44.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis, alleges that Defendants knew

or should have known that sexually abusive staff, such as Defendant NASSAR, were violating

% )
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Defendants USOC and USAG policies, without en forcement or abatement, and were continually

allowed to be in contact with minor children, such as ALY RAISMAN. As early as 1999,

Defendant USOC was placed on notice by former Defendant USAG president Bob Colarossi, who
wrote 1 letter to the USOC, explaining that the safety procedures and policies that USOC required
USAG (o follow, were part of a .. fundamentally flawed process...™ and that at USOC there was
an “...apparent indiffcrence to the welfare of young children manifest in the Committee’s
actions.” See Exhibit A as the Letter from Robert Colarossi to USOC. It was not until 11 years
later, that Defendant USOC created the SafeSport program and issued a handbook dctailing
specific procedurcs for preventing sexual abuse of minors, and access to minors by sexual abusers.
Despite instituting this hand book and program, Defendant USOC maintained its course and culture
of ignoring abuse, ignoring its internal poticies and procedures, and placing minors n the way of
danger.

45. Platift is informed and belicves and, an that basis, alleges Defendants knew of|
or should have known of, Defendants NASSAR’s propensity and disposition to ¢ngage in sexual
misconduct with minors before he sexuvally sbused and molested ALY RAISMAN, and knew of
the probability that NASSAR would molest minors with whom he came into contact, such as ALY
RAISMAN.

46.  Dcfendant failed to implement rcasonable sateguards to avoid acts of unlawful
sexual conduct by Defendant NASSAR in the future, including avoiding placement of Defendant
NASSAR in a position where contact and interaction with children is an inherent function.
Defendants ignored and suppressed the past sexual misconduct Defendant NASSAR had engaged
in, and concealed that jnformation from ALY RAISMAN and her family.

47.  Plaintift is informed and believes, and on that basis allegcs, that Defendants were
apprised, kncw or should have known of and/or were put on noticc of Defendant NASSAR’s past
sexual abuse of children, past claims und/or investigations, and his propensity and disposition lo
engagc in such unawful activity and unlawful sexual activity with minor participants and members
such that Dcfendants knew or should have known that Defendant NASSAR would commit

wrongful sexual acts with participants and members. including ALY RAISMAN. Plaintiff is
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informed and bclieves, and on that basis alleges that personnel and/or employment records and
other records of Defendants’ reflect numerous incidents of inappropriate sexual contact and
conduct with minor participants and members by Defendant NASSAR and other professionals,
employees, assstants, agents, supervisors and others, including incidents occurring both on and
off the physical premises of such Defendants and at national and intemational meets. Based on
these records, Defendants knew and/or should have known of Defendant NASSAR’s history ot
sexual abuse, past claims and/or past investigations, and his propensity and disposition to engage
in unlawful activity and unlawful scxval activity with participants and members such that
Defendants knew or should have known thal Defendant NASSAR would commit wrongful sexual
acts wjth thosc minor participanls and members, including ALY RAISMAN.

48. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
NASSAR was repeatedly informally censured, disciplined and/or reprimanded by Defendants
USAG, 1ISOC, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, for taking an inordinate number
of photographs of young girls, who were gymnasts. This conduct by Defendant NASSAR was in
direct contravention of his duties set forth by the Defendants USAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA,
and DOLS ! through 500, and was not communicated to the Plaintiff or her family. This conduct
was not further investigated, was not rcported to law enforcement or child weltare authontics, and
was never communicated to the Plaintiff, her parents or other gymnasts, in direct violation of
Defendant USAG’s mandate under the Defendant USOC’s policies, procedures and rmles.
Subsequent to NASSAR’s inttial arrest in 2016, thousands of images of child pomography were
located by Federal law enforcement on his electronic devices, and Detendant NASSAR pleaded
guilly to such possession of child pornography in July of 2017. Had Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 effectively implemecnted their safety policics and
procedures, damage to the Plaintiff coukl have been minimized and NASSAR’s conduct could
have been stopped carlier, but il was not.

49. Because of the relationship between Plaintiff aud Defendants, Defendants had an
obligation and duty under the law not to hide material facts and information about NASSAR s

past, and his deviant sexual behavior and propensities. Additionally, Defendants had an affirmative
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duty Lo inform, warn, and institute appropriate protective measures to safeguard minors who were
rcasonably likely to come in contact with Defendant NASSAR, including ALY RAISMAN at the
time. Defendants willfully refused to notity, give adequate warning and implement appropriate
safeguards, thereby creating the peri} that ultimately damaged ALY RAISMAN.

5s0.  PlainGiff is informed and believes, and on that hasis alleges, that prior to ALY
RAISMAN’s sexual abuse by Detendant NASSAR, Defendants engaged in a pattem and practice
of employing sexual abusers. Defendants concealed these facts from participants and members,
their parents, the Plaintiff’s community, the gymnastics community, the public at large, other
NGR's, the United States government, various loeal governmenes, and law enforcement agencies.

S1. As is set forth herein, Defendants and cach o fthem have failed to uphold numerous
mandatory duties required of them by state and [ederal law, as well as their own internal written
policies and procedures, including:

e Duty o use reasonable care lo protect participants and members from known or
foreseeable dangers &

¢ Duty to inform the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and her parents of the knawn risks to
the health and well-being of thew daughter while in Defendant’s USAG and/or USOC
sponsored, authorized, and supcrvised programs, events and trainings,

s Duty to cnact policies and procedwes (hat are not in contravention of the Federal
Civil Rights Act, scction 1983 and the 14th amendment of the United States
Constitution;

* Duty to protcet participants and members and staff, and provide adequale supervision;

¢ Dutyto cnsure that any direction given to participants and members is lawful, and
that adults act fairly, responsible and respect{ully towards participants and members;

* Duty to properly train staff so that they are aware of their individual responsibility for
creating and mamntaining a safe environment;

® Duty to review lhe criminal history of applicants and current erployees;
¢ Duty to provide diligent supervision over minors;
¢ Duty to act promptly and diligently and not ignore or minimize problems.

¢ Duty to report suspected incidents of child abuse and more specifically childhood
sexual abuse (Penal Code sections 11166, 11§67).

¢ Duty to provide adequate and safe medical care pursuant to 36 U.S.C.
§6§220525(b)(4)(E).

"2
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32 Defendants and each of them had and have a duty to protect participants and
mecmbers, including ALY RAISMAN. Defendants were required to, and failed, to provide
adequate supervision, and failed to be properly vigilant in seeing that supervision was sutticient at
Detendants USAG and USOC to ensure the safety of ALY RAISMAN and others.

53.  Despite having a duty 1o do so, IDefendants failed to adequately train and supervise
all staff to create 4 positive and safe environment, specifically including training to perceive, report
and stop inappropriate sexual conduct by other members of the staff, specifically including
NASSAR with children.

54. Delendants failed to enforce their own rules and regulations designed to prolect the
health and safety of the participants and members. Futher, they failed to adopt and implement
safcty measurcs, policics and procecdurces designed to proteet minor children such as Plaintiffs
child from the sexually exploitive and abusive acts of their agents and employees such as
NASSAR.

SS. Plaintiff is infonmed and believes and, on that basis, alleges that as part of
Defendants’ conspiratorial and fraudulent attempt to hide NASSAR’s propensity to sexually abuse
children, and prior sexval misconduct with children, from public scrutiny and criminal
investigation, Nefendants implemented various measures designed to make NASSAR’s counduct

harder to detecl and ensure minors with whom he camc into contact, such as ALY RAISMAN,
would be sexually abused, including:

a. Penrmitting NASSAR to remain in a position of authority and trust afler
Defendants knew or should have known that he was a molester of children;

h. Placing NASSAR in a separate and secluded environrment, at USAG and USOC
authorized camps and cvents, including assigning him unfettered access and
control over minor participants and members that included individual and private
examinations, privale osteopathic adjustments without a chaperone, and allowing
NASSAR {o physically and sexually interact with the children, including ALY
RAISMAN;

c. Failing to disclose NASSAR’s prior record of misconduct, sexual abusc,
harassment and molestation and his propensity to comunit such acts tow ards
participants and members in USAG’s and USOC’s program, the public at large,
and law cnforcement;

d. Allowing NASSAR s unsupcrvised and un-controlled access to minors including
ALY RAISMAN;

21-
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]

56

Holding out NASSAR to ALY RAISMAN, other participants and members of
USAG and USOC, and the public at large as a trustworthy and honest person of
high cthical and moral repute who was capable and worthy of being granted
unsuperviscd access to the children of USAG;

fio or deny such facts about NASSAR

Failing to investigatc or otherwise con y su
; 2 and investigations for sexual abuse;

including prior arxests, charges, claims

Failing to inform, or concealing from Plaintiff and taw enforcement ofticials the
fact that ALY RAISMAN and others were or may have been sexually abused,
harassed and molested, after Defendants knew or should have known that _
NASSAR may have sexually abused ALY RAISMAN or othcrs, thereby enabling
ALY RAISMAN to continue to be endangered and sexually abused, harasscd,
molested, and/or creating the circumstance where ALY RAISMAN and others
were less likely to receive proper medical treatment, thus exacerbating the harm
to ALY RAISMAN;

Holding out NASSAR to Plaintiff and to the community as being in good
standing and trustworthy;

Cloaking NASSAR"s prior scxual misconduct with children within the facade of
normalcy, thereby disguising the nature of his sexual abuse and contact with
minors;

Failing to takc reasonable steps and to implement reasonable safeguards (o avoid
acts of unlaw/ful sexual conduct by NASSAR such as avoiding placement of
NASSAR in functions or environments in which his solitary contact with children
was mherent;

Failing to put in place a system or procedurc to supervise or monitor physicians,
athletic trainers, and agents to insure they do not molest or abuse minors in
Defendants' carc.

Failing to investigate Nassar’s hack ground adequately.

Allowing NASSAR to practicc medicine without a Texas medical license at the
National Training Centcr.

Failing to implement any reasonable, meaningful, or adequate supervision
policies, practices or procedutes at the National Training Center, which would
have prevented NASSAR solitary access to minors, including the Plaintiff.

By his position within the Defendants’ institutions, NASSAR attained a position of

influence over ALY RAISMAN, her parents, and others. Defendants' conduct created a sttuation

of peril that was not, and could not be appreciated by ALY RAISMAN. By virtue of Defendants'

conspiratorial and fraudulent conducl, and in keeping with their intent to fail to disclose and hide

NASSAR’s past and present conduct from the community, the public at large and law ¢nforecment,

Defendants allowed NASSAR to remain in a position of influence where his unsuperviscd or

ncgligently supervised conduct with minor participants and members made the molestation and

abusc of minor participants and members possible.
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57, During the period ALY RAISMAN was being sexually abused and harassed by

NASSAR. Defendants had the authority and ability to prevent such abuse by removing Defendaat

NASSAR from his position as team physician at Team USA, USAG and in his status with the
USOC. They failed to do so, allowing the abusc to occur and to continue unabated. Plaintiff is
informed and belicves and, on that basis, alleges that this failure was a part of Defendants'
conspiratorial plan and arrangement to conceal NASSAR’s wiongful acts, to avoid and inhibit
detection, to black public disclosure, to avoid scandal, to avoid the disclosure of their tolerance of
child sexual molcstation and abuse, 1o preserve a false appearance of propriety, and to avoid
investigation and action by public authority including law enforcement. Such actions were
motivated by a desire to proteet the reputation of Defendants and protect the monetary support of
Defendants, while fostering an environment where such abuse could continue to occur.

58. As a direct result of the sexual harassment and abuse that ALY RAISMAN suffered
from Detendant NASSAR, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARIT.ILA, and DOES 1 through
500 failing to inform the ALY RAISMAN (or her parents) of the danger posed to her by NASSAR,
Plaintiff has had difficulty in meaningfully interacting with others, including those in positions of
authority over Plaintiff including physicians, athletic supervisors, athletic trainers, as well as their
servants and agents. Plaintiff has been limited in her ability to meamngfully interact with others
due to the trauma of childhood sexual abuse, and the upset of having known that they could have
prevented such, had Detendants conveyed thc nppropriate information. This inability to interact
creates conflict with Plaintiff’s values of trust and confidence in others, and has caused Plajntiff
substantial emotional distress, anxiety. nervousness and fear. As a direct result of this concluet,
Plaintiff suffered immensely, including, but not limited to, encountering issucs with a lack of trust,
various negative psychological and cmotional scquelae, depressive symptoms, anxiety, and
nervousness. [Having been nne of the most famous gymnasts in United States (and World) history,
ALY RAISMAN lost millions of dollars in economic damages, as a result of her sexual abuse at

the hands of NASSAR, and continucs to suffer from such loss.

¢ eWoT on y :
59, As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ tortious acts, omissions, wrongfii

conduct and breaches of their duties, Plaintiffs employment and professional development has

— _23..
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{ inti ' ¢ ancial opportunities
heen adversely affected. Plaintiff has losl wages, endorsements, and many fina PP

and will continue to lose wages in an amount to be determined at trial. Plaintift has suffered

substantial economic injury, all to Plaintiff’s gencral, special and consequential damage n an

amount o be proven at trial, but lin no event less than the minimum jurisdictional amount of this
Court.

60.  Asa forther direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful actions, as herein
alleged, Plaintiff has been hurt in their health, strength and activity. Plaintff has sustained
permanent and continuing injury to their nervous system and pesson, which has caused and
continues to cause great mental, physical and nervous pain, suffering, fright, upset, grief, worry
and shock in an amount according to proof at trial but in no event less than the junisdictional
minimum reguirements of this Court.

61. In subjecting Plaintif{ to the wrongful treatment hercin descnbed, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, NASSAR and DOELS 1 through 500 acted willfully and
maliciously with the infent to harin Plaintiff, and in conscious disregard of Plaintif("s rights, so as
to constitute malice and/or oppression under Califomia Civil Code scction 3294. Plaintift is
informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that specifically, the Detendants acted in concen,
and under their authority as child care providers, with reckless disregard for the concem of the
minor participants in 1ts charge, in order to further financially benefit their respective business’
growth, The Defendants acted intentionally in creating an environment that harbored molesters,
put the vulnerable minor participants at-risk of harm, ignored clear waming signs and their dulies
to report sexual abusers and molesters in their ranks, to maintain a fagade of normalcy, in order (o
maintain its funding and provide further financial growth of Defendants USAG, USOC, and
PENNY and PARILLA, individually, on thc intemational Jevel. The safety of the minor
participants that were entrusted to Defendant USAG and represented as heing protected through
Defendant USOC, was compromised due to Detendants desire to maintain the status quo of the
Defendants USAG and USOC organizations, and avoid any public scrutiny for its misconduct.
Plaintiff is informed, and on that basis alleges, that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acls,

as alleged hercin above, werce ratified by the officers, directors, and/or managing agents of the

4
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Defendants. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to recover punitive damages, in an amount to be

deterinined by the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, NASSAR and

DOES 1 through 500.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
SEXUAL HARASSMENT: C1VIL CODE § 51.9
(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USAG, USOC, NASSAR and DOES 1

through 500)

62.  The Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every

atlegation contained herein above as though fully sct forth and brought in this causc of action.

65. Duging the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s time as a2 minor gymnast under the care,
control and/or mandate of Defendants USOC, USAG and DOES 1 through 500, NASSAR
recklessly and wantonly made sexual advances, solicitations, requests, demands for sexual
compliance of a hostile naturc based on the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s gender that were
unwelcome, pervasive and severe. NASSAR inlentionally, recklessly and wantonly did acts which
resulted in harmful and offensive contact with intimate parts of the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN's
person, including but not limited to NASSAR using the authonty and trust mherent in his position
as an Olympic Doctor to exploit her physically, psychologically and emotionally. These acts were
done for NASSAR’s sexual gratification; all while NASSAR was acling in the course and scope
of his agency/employment with Defendants USAG, USOC, aud DOES 1 through 500.

64.  The incidents of abuse outlined herein above took place while the Plaintiff ALY
RAISMAN was under the care of NASSAR, in his capacity and position as an Olympic Doctor,
while acting specifically on behalf of Defendants USOC, and DOES 1 through 500.

65.  Because ol the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s young age, nature of her competitive
sport, and relationship with NASSAR as a gymnast at Defendant USAG (uoder the control and
authority of Defendants USOC and USAG), the Pluintiff ALY RAISMAN was unable to eusily
terminate her doclorpatient relationship with NASSAR.

66.  Because of NASSAR’s position of authority over Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN, and
the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s mental and emotional state, and her young age under the age of

consent, Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN was unable to, and did not give meaningful consent to such

acts.
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67. Even though Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES | through 500 knew or should

have known of these activities by NASSAR, Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500
did nothing to investigatc, supervise or monitor NASSAR to ensure the safcty of Plaintiff ALY
RAISMAN. Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES 1 through 500 ratified the sexual misconduct
of NASSAR by retaining him in employment after discovering, or ignoring the facts that would
have led them to discover, his misconduct.

68 Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500's conduct was a breach of
their dutics 10 the Plaintift ALY RAISMAN.

69.  As aresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN suftered and
continues to suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, cmotional distress, phystcal manifestations
of emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of
enjoyment of life; have suffered and continue to sutter and were prevented and will conlinue to be
prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full cnjoyment of life; will sustain
Joss of earnings and caming capacity, and has iucurred and will continue to incur expenses for
medicat and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.

70. In subjccting Plaintiff to the wrongful treatment herein described, Defendants
USOC. USAG. NASSAR and DOFES ! thraugh 500, acted willfully and maliciously with the intent
to harm Plaintiff. and in conscious disregard of Plainti ff's rights, so as to constitute malicec and/or
oppression under California Civil Code section 3294. Plaintiff 1s informed, and on that basis
alleges, that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acts, as allcged bercin above, were ratified
by the officcrs. dirceiurs. and/or managing agents ot the Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES |
through 500. Plaintiff is thercfore entitled, to the recovery of punitive damages, in an amount to be
determined by the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOLS 1 through 500.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
MASHA’S 1.AW (18 U.S.C. §§2255, 2423(b), 2423(¢))

(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USAG, USOC, NASSAR und DOES 1
through S00)

71. Plaintift re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every allegation

containcd herein above as though fully sct forth and brought in this cause of action.

nN&L
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72. Under 18 U.S.C. §§2255, the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN has a private right of action

against NASSAR, and any defendants who are vicariously and/or strictly responsible for NASSAR
while abroad perpetrating his sexual assuulis against ALY RAISMAN, including Defendants
USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500. See Doe v. Celebrity Crases, Inc. (11th Cir. 2004) 394
F.3d 891, 894.

73 Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN is a victim of the federal crime codified as 18 LLS.C.
§2423(b), which was perpetrated by NASSAR and provides, “[a] person wha travels in interstate
commerce or travels into the Uniled States, or 1 United States citizen ... who travels in foreign
commerce, for the purpose of engagingin any illicit sexual eonduct with another person shall
be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 30 ycars, or both.”

M. Furthermore, Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN is a victim of the federal crime codified as
18 U.S.C. §2422(¢), whicl was perpetrated by NASSAR and provides, “fa]ny United States
citizen ... who travels in foreign commerce or resides, either temporarily or pcrmancntly, in a
foreign country, and engages in any illicit sexual conduct with anether person shall be fined
under (his title or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or both.”

75.  Asalleged hercin, Detendant NASSAR travelled with ALY RAISMAN to Europe,
Australia, Japan, and across state lines, wherein he sexually harassed, abused, and molested her.
when she was under the age of 18 years old and as previously stated herein. Defendant NASSAR
travelled with ALY RAISMAN for the sole purpose of engaging in this elicit scxual conduct with
her.

70.  Asa result of the above-described conduct, the Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN suffered
and continues to sulfer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical
manifestations of emoltional distress, embarrassment, loss of selt-esteem, disgrace, humiliation,
and loss of enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and were prevented and wil)
continue Lo be prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the fuil enjoyment of life;
will sustain loss of earmnings and earning capacity, and have incomed und will continue to incur

expenses for medical and psychological trealment, therapy, and counseling.
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1 7. In subjecting Plaintiff to the wrongful trecatment herein described, Defendants
2 USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500, acted willfully and maliciously with the intent to harm
3 Plaintiff, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff's rights, so as to constitute malice and/or
4 oppression under Califormia Civil Code section 3294. Plaintiff is informed, and ou that basis
5 alleges, that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acts, as alleged herein above, were ratified
6 by the officers, directors, and/or managing agents of the Defendants USAG, USOC and DOES ]
7 through 500. PlawntifTis thereflore entitled, upon proper application (o the court, to the recovery of
8 paitive damages, in an amomt to be determined by the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG,
9 and DOES ) through 500.
10 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
11 (Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defondants USOC, USAG, NASSAR. PENNY,
i3 PARJILLA, and DOES 1 through 500)
] w 78.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference hercin each and every atlegation
e contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.
i: 79. Nefendants TJSAG, USOC, PENNY, PARILLA. and DOLS 1 dunough 500°s
i conduct toward Plaintift, as 'dr.suribud hercin, wag outrageons and extreme.
o R0, A rcasonable person would nar expect or tolerute Detendants USOC, USAG,
o PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 pntting NASSAR in positions of authotity al
19 Defendants USAG, USOC, or DOES | through 500, which enabled NASSAR to have access to
20 minors including Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN, so that he could commit wrongful sexual acts with
21 her, including the conduct described herein above. Plaintiff had great trust, faith and confidence in
2 in Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, which, by virtue of
23 NASSAR and Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's
24 wrongful conduct, tutned to fear.
o 8. Morcover, by failing to report NASSAR or honor any of their legal reporting
i obligations and by failing to promplly notify the parents of Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN of the abuse
5% of their daughter, Defendants USOC and DOLS | through 500 knew that Plaintiff would be directly
” harmed. Under the holding in Phyilis P. case, a special relationship and a duty to notify the parents
of Plaintiff was stated. Such duty being independent of any duty Defendants USOC, USAG.
—_— -28- o
COMPLAINT FORDAMAGES R =
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PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owed to Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN and is a dtrect

duty owed to the Plaintiff’s parents and was thereby orcated with Plainti ff’s parents, whereby

Plaintiff's parents are intended or direct victims of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 failures and can recover for any emotional distress

proximately caused thereby. Specifically, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and

DOES 1 through 500 had knowledge of NASSAR's dangerous propensities to sexually abuse
children, yet concealed and failed to disclose to Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN this information.

82. A reasonable person would not expect or tolerate Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 to be incapable of supcrvising and preventing
employees of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES { through 500, ncluding
NASSAR. from committing wroniglul sexual acts with minor gymnasts including Plaintiff ALY
RAISMAN., or to properly supuivisc NASSAR to prevent snch abuse from occurring, or to
promptly notify parents or authorities.

83.  DNefendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, NASSAR, and DOES 1 through

500's conduct described herein was intentional and malicious and donc for the purpuse of causing,

or with the substantia) cenainty (hat it would cause Pluintiff ALY RATSMAN and her parents, (0
suffer humiliation, mental anguish and emotional and pbysical distress.

84, As aresult of the above-desceribed conduct, Plaintitt suffered and continues 10 su e
great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotivnal
distress, embarrassmietit, 10ss of sclf-csteem, disgrace, hamilialion, and loss of cnjeyment of life;
have suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be prevented from
performing daily activitics and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain loss of carnings
and earning capacity, and has incmired and will continuc to incut expenses for medical and
psychological treatment, therapy, and counscling.

85 In subjecting Plaintiff to the wrongful trcatment herein described, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARII.T.A, NASSAR and DOES 1 tluough 500 acted willfully and
maliciously with the intent to hamu Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN. and in conscious distegard of

Plainliff’s rights, so as to constitute malice and oppression under California Civil Code section

o =29-
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3204. Plaintiff is thercfore cntitled to the recovery of punitive damages, in an amount to be

determined hy the court, against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1

through 500, in a sum to he shown according (o proof.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ‘

UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES (BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE §17200)
(Plaintiff ALY RATSMAN Against Defendnnts USOC, USAG, PENNY _PARILLA and
DOES 1 through 500)

86.  .Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporatcs by reference herein each and every allegation

contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause vf action.
87. Plaintiff is inforiied and belioves and, on that basis,, alleges that Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY. PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 have engaged in unlawful, unfair

and/or deceplive business practices including allowingNASSAR to engage in repeated harassment

of panicipante and members, including Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN, and failing to take all
reasonable stepe to prevent harassment and abuse from occurring. The unlawful, untair and
deceptive business practices aleo included failing to adequately investigatc, vet, and cvaluate
individuals for employinent with Delondantg USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOS 1

throngh SO0, refusing to design, implement, and aversee policies regarding sexual harassment and

abuse of children in a reasonable manner that 138 customary in similar cducational environments.
Dlaintiff is infonned and believes and. on that basis. alleges that Detendants USOC, USAG, and
DOES ! through 500 have engaged in unlawful, unfair and deceptive business practices including
conceahing sexual harassment, abuse and/or molestation claims by participants and members, such
as Plainuff ALY RAISMAN, so as (o retain other participants and members within Deferlants
USA G, who were: not apprised of such illicit sexual misconduct by NASSAR.

88. Plaintiff is infurmed and believes, and on that basis alleges that Defendunts USOC

USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 engaged in a common scheme, arrangement

or plan to actively conceal allegations against scxual abusers who were employees, agents
members, and/or participants at Defendants USAG, USOC, and DOES 1 through 500, such that
Detendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PA RILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 could maintain their

public image, and avoid detection of such abuse and abusers. Plaintiff is informed and believes

and thereon alleges that Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through S00 actively conccaled

e -30-
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these allegations, such that Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA. and DOES 1 through
500 would be insulated from public scrutiny, governmental oversight, and/or investigation from
various law enforcement agencics, all donc in order to maintain the false sense of safety for
participants and their families and to perpetuatc the program financially.

89. By engaging in unlawful, unfair and deceptive businuss practices, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 bLenefitted financially to the
detriment of its comnpetitors, who had to comply with the law.

90. Linless restrained, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1
through 500 will continue to cngagc in the unfair acts and business practices described above,
resulting in great and urcparable hari to Plaintiff and/or other similarly situated participants and
members.

91.  Plointiff seeks restitution for all amounts improperly obtained by Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLS 1 through 500 through the uvsc of the above-
mentioned unlawful business practices, as well as the disgorgement of all ill-gotten gains and
rcstitution on behalf of Plainti €€ and all other similarly situated participants and members who were
also subjected to Defendant’s illegal and unfair business practices.

92. Pursuant to section 17203 of the California Business and Professions Code and
available equitable powwuars;, Plaintiff js ontitled 0 a preliminacy and  pormanent injunction,
enjoining Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500 from continuing the unlawful and
unfair business practices deseribed above. Further, Plaintiff sceks the appointient of a court
monitor to enforce 1ts orders regarding client safety. In addition, Plaintiff is entitled to recover
reasonable attorneys' fees pursuant to the California Business and Professions Code and section

1021.5 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Apgainst Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through 500) ==

93.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference berein cach and every allcgation

contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

il
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1 94 Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, as

2 childeare custodians representing, {hat they would keep Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN safe, were in a

3 fiduciary relationship with Plantift ALY RAISMAN, owing her a special duty of due care.
4 Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARTI.LA, and DOES 1 through SO0 are mandated reporters,
5 or organizations required to comply with Mandated Reporting laws, with respect to claims of child
6 | abuseand child safety. .

7 i 95.  Moreover, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through

8 I 500 owed Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN a statutory, common {aw and constitutional duty to protect

o) her and guaraniee her safety while i their custody, care, and control.

1()‘ 96. The Delendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 400 also
3 11| owed a specinl duty o ALY RAISMAN's parents. As diroot vietima far failira ta notify of abuse
;31;2: g 12| of their minor child (See Phyllis P. v. Claremont Unified School District, 183 Cal. App. 3d at 1193)
i:;j : 13"} which held that a school district had a special relationship with 4 parent because the pacent was the
§:§ f: 14 || “icul aud foresceable” victim of the defendants’ negligent conduct. Dircet victims may bring
é{:f’ £ )5 || claims where there was a negligent breisch of u duty urising out of 4 preexisting relationship. Any
Eéié 16 breach committed by the Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLS 1} through
<z

17 || 500 violates this special relationship and duty owed to Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN’s parents.
13 97.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500
19 || breached their fiduciary duty by failing to properly supervisc NASSAR and take appropriate steps

t prevent the lewd and lascivious conduct perpetrated by NASSAR against ALY RAISMAN.
2] || Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 also failed to reporl

22| NASSAR pursuant to USOC and 1JSAG policy. Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through

300 also failed to implement or follow appropriate policies and procedure. sto protect minors,

N
»

including ALY RAISMAN. In addition, Defendunts USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and

39)
(9]

DOES 1 through 500 failed to report NASSAR’s ahuse or promptly notify ALY RAISMAN’s
26 /I parcnts.

27 ¢ S
o8, The employees, servants, agents, volunteers or other representatives of Defendants

USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, respectively, willfully and

i S x
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intentionally ignorcd behavior in NASSAR and complaints against NASSAR that they should have

reported due to their responsibility as mandated reporters.

990.  Asaresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff suffered and continues to suffer
great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional
distress, embarrassment, loss of self-csteem, disgrace, humiliation, and loss of enjoyment of life;
has suffered and continues to suffer and were prevented and will continue Lo be prevented from
performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment ol life; will sustain loss of camings
and eamning capacity, and has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for medical and
psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.

100. In subjecting Plaintiff to the wrongful treatment herein described, Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 acted willfully and maliciously
with the intent to harm Plaintiff, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights, so as to constitute
malice and oppression under California Civil Code section 3294. Plaintiff is therefore entitled to
the recovery of punitive damages, in an amount to be determined by the court, against Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500, in a sumn to be shown according to

proof.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
CONSTRUCTIVE FRAUD

(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILILA, and
DOES 1 through 500)

101.  Plainliff re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and every aliegation
contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

102. By holding NASSAR out as an agent of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 fhrough 500, and by allowing him to undertake the physical carc and
athlctic training of minor children such as ALY RAISMAN, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, und DOLS 1 through 500 entered into a confidential, fiduciary,
with Plaintiff.

and special relationship

103. By holding themsclves out as professional organizations for woman’s gymnastics

undertaki clee q i i i {
crtaking to sclect and train national gymnastics teams, enforcing policies, rules. and procedures
b 3 '

for gymnasts’ safety and facilitating competition both nationally and intemationally of ALY

D

—
—_—
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; (s sOC, USAG, PENNY,
RAISMAN and other migor tcam participants and members, Defendants USOC, US

duciary and special relationship

with Plaintiff and other minor gymnasts (as well as ther familics).

104. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLS 1 through 500
. . . . . d

breached (heir confidential, fiduciary duty and special duties to Plaintiff by the wrongful an
negligent conduct described above and incomorated into this cause of action, and in so doing,

pained an advantape over Plainiiff in matters relating to Plainti fs safcly, security and health. In

particular, in breaching such duties as alleged, Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA,
and DOES 1 through 500 were able to sustain their status as institutions (or individuals) of high
moral repute, and preserve their reputation, all at the expense of Plaintiff's further injury and in
violation of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's

mandatory dutics.

105 By virtue ol wieiv conlidential, Hduaciary and spacinl seliaiondap wathy Plainﬁf'{',
Defendants USQC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owed Plaintiff a duty
to:

a. Investigale or otherwise confirm or deny such claims of sexual abuse:

b. Revenl cuch facts to Plaintf), the gvmnasics comrmnuily, the connunity at large,
and law enforcement agencies;

c. Refuse to place NASSAR and other molesters in pasitions of frust and authoriry
within Dcfendants USOC, USAG and DOES | through 500's institutions;

Refuse to hold out NASSAR and other molectars 10 the publie, the community,
minors, parents and law cnforcement agencics as being i1 good standing and,

trustworthy in keeping with him and his position as a team physician and
authority figurc;

Refuse to assign NASSAR and other molesters to positions of power within
Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES ) through 500 and over minors; and

Disclose to Plaintiff, the public, the school community, minors, and law

enforcement agencies the wrongful, tortious, and sexually exploitive acts that
NASSAR had engaged in with children.

106.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOFS | through 500's breach

of their respective duties included:

a. Not making reasonabie investigations of NASSAR;

4.
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b. Issuing no wamings about NASSAR;

- Permitting NASS AR 1o routinely be alone with and in control of minors,
unsupervised;

d. Not adopting a policy to prevent NASSAR from routinely having minors and
participants and mcembers in his unsupervised control;

7 Making no reports of any allcgations of NASSAR's abuse of participants and
members, or of minors prior to or during his cmployment and/or agency at
Defendants USOC, USAG and DOES ! through 500; and

f Assigning and continuing to assign NASSAR to duties which placed him in

positions of authority and trust over minors, positions in which NASSAR could
easily isolate and sexually abuse minors.

107. At the time that Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES )
(hrouglhi 500 cngaged in such suppression and conccahment of acts, such acts were donc for the
purposc of causing Plaintiff to forbear on her rights.

108. Defendants USOC. USAG. PENNY. PARILLA. and DOES 1 through 500's
misconduct did reasonably cause Plaintiff'io farbear on her rights.

109. The misrepresentations, suppressions and concealment of facts by Defendants
U30C, UBAQ, FENNY, PARILLA, aud DOES 1 (hrough SO0 were intended to and werce likely
to mislead Plaintiff and others 1o bolieve thit Defendants USOC, USAG. PENNY?, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through 500 had no knowledge of any charges. claims orinvestigations against NASSAR,
or that there werc no other charges, claims or investigations of unlawful or sexual misconduct
against NASSAR or others anid that there was no need for them to take Apther action or precaation.

110. T'he misrcpresentations, suppressions and concealmient of Jucts by Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILILA, and DOES | through 500 was likely to mislead Plaintiff and
others to believe that Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500

had no knowledge of the fact that NASSAR was a molester, and was known to conunit wrongful

sexual acts with minors, including with ALY RAISMAN.

111, Defendants 1JSOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 knew
or should have known at the time they suppressed and concealed the true facts regarding others’
sexual molestations, that the resulting impressions were misleading.

112, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500

suppressed and concealed the true facts regarding NASSAR with the purpose of: preventing

=== R, -35-
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Plaintiff, and others, from lcaming that NASSAR and others had been and were continuing to
sexually harass, molest and abuse minors and others under NASSAR’s and Detendants USOC,
USAG. PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES } through 500's coatrol, dircction, and guidance, with
complete impunity; inducing people, inciuding ALY RAISMAN and other benefactors and donors
to participate and financially suppost Defendants USOC and DOES ] through 500; USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ] through 500's program and other enterpriscs of Defendants
USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500; preventing further reports and outside investigations
into NASSAR and Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILY.A, and DOES 1 through 500's
conduct; preventing discovery af Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1

through S00's own conduct, avuiding dJdamge 1o the reputations of Defendants USOC, USAG,

PIENNY and DOES 1 through >00; protecting Dcfcndants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA,

and DOES 1 through S00's power and stalus in the community and the gymnastics community:
avoiding damage to the reputation of Defendunts USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES
{ through 500, or Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARIII.A| and DOES 1 through 500's
institutions; and avoiding the civil and criminal liability o( Defendants UISOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, of NASSAR, aud of othess.

113. Atalltimes mentioned herein, Defendants USOC. USAG. PENNY, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through 500, with knowlcdge of (he tortious nature of their own and NASSAR’s conduct,
knowingly conspired and gave cach other substantial assistance to perpctrate the
misrepresentations, fraud and deceit alleged herein—-covering up the past allegations of sexual

misconduct lodged againet NASSAR, and allowing NASSAR (o remnain in his position as a teamn
physician so they could maintain their reputations and continuc with their positions within the
organization.

114, The Plaintiff and others were misled by Dclendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's suppressions and concealment of facts, and in rcliance
tbereon, were induced to act or induced not to act, exactly as intended by Defendants USoc,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500. Specifically, Plaintiff were induced to

believe that therc were no allegations of criminal or scxual abuse against NASSAR and that he
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was safe to be around children. Had Plaintiff known the true facts about NASSAR, they would
have not participated further in activities of NASSAR, or continued to financially support

Defendants USOC, USAG, and DOES 1 through 500's activities. They would have reported the
noatters to the proper authorities, to other minor participants and members and their parents so as
to prevent future recurrences; they would not have allowed children, including the PlaintifT] to be
alone with, or have any relationship with NASSAR; thcy would not have allowed children,
including the Plaintiff, to attend or be under the control ot Detendants USOC, USAG and DOES
1 through 500; they would have undertaken their ewn investigations which would have led to
discovery of the true facts; and they would have sought psychological counseling for the Plaintift,
and for other children molested and abused by NASSAR.

115. By giving NASSAR the position of team physician, Defendants USOC, USAU,

PENNY, PARILLA. and DOES 1 through 500 impliedlv represented that NASSAR wac «afe and
morally fit to give children carc and provide ostecopathic adjustments.

116, When Defendants USOC, USAG. PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 thrawuyph SO0
Mmade these atthirmatuve o1 Onplied representations and non-disclosures of material  facts,
Defendants USOC. USAG, PENNY, FPARILLA, and HOES | through 500 knew or should have

known that 1he facts were othetwise. Delendunts USOC, UISAG, PENNY, PARILLA, und DOES
1 through 500 knowingly and intentionntiv subpressed the matetial Gicts that NASSAR had on

numerous, prior vccusions sexually, physically, and mentlally abused minors and participants and
members of Defendunts USOC, USAG and NOIAS | through 500, including the Plaintiff, and knew
of or learned ot conduct, ot should have kunown of conduct by NASSAK which placcd Detendants
USOC, TISAG, and DOES 1 thirough 500 an notice that NASSAR had previously Loen suspected
orfelanies, includmg unlawful soxual conduct will; tiinots, and was likely abusing children
/. B inti it 3| izali
ecause of Plaintiff’s position on the outside of thesc organizalions, and because
ofthe status Of NASSAR as a trusted, authority figure to Plaintiff and her (amily, ALY RAISMAN
was vulnerablc to NASSAR and the i
S8+ representations of Defl O
p elendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,

PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500, both express and implied. NASSAR sought the Plaintiff out
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and was empowcred by and accepted ALY RAISMAN's vulnerability. Plaintiffs vulnerability

v
2 || also prevented her from effectively protecting herself from the sexual advances ol NASSAR.
L1R Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 had (he

3
4 duty to obtain and disclose information relating to sexual misconduct of NASSAR.
5 119. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500

6 misrepresented, concealed or failed to disclose information relating to sexual misconduct of

7 NASSAR.
8 120. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 knew
9 that they had misrepresented. concealed or fuiled o disclose informuation related Lo sexuud

10 || misconduct of NASSAR.
1] 121 Plaintiff jushifiably rclied upon Defendants TISOC, TISAG, PENNY, PARILLA,

12 || and DOES 1 through 500 for information relalting to sexual unsconduct of NASSAR.
132 122,  Defendants USOC. UISAG, PENNV, PARIIIA, and DOES 1 theangsh SO0 in
14 concert with cach other and with the indeut (o conceal el deliaud, conspired und came to a meeting

5 of e gtinds wherchby ey would mistepresent, conceal or ) 1o disclosc information rclating 1o

16 thc scxual misconduct of NAS3AR, the inability uf Delendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,

¢

= 17 PARTI.LA, and DOES | rthrongh 500 to supcrvise or stop NASSAR from sexually harassing.
18 || molesting and abusing ALY RAISMAN, and their own failure to properly investigate, supervise

19 || and monitor bis conduct with minor participants and members.

20 123. By so concealing, Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1

21|l through 500 committcd at lcast onc act in futhciauce of e conspiracy.

22 124, As aresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered and continues (o
23 || suffer great pain of mind and body, shack, emational distress, physical manifestations of cmotional
24 || distress including embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations, and loss of
25 || enjoyment of life; has snffered and continues to suffer and was prcvented and will continue to be
26 || prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
27 || loss of earnings and earning capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

28 || medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counscling,
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125.  In addition, when Plaintiff finally discovered the fraud of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, and continuing thercafter, Plaintiff
experienced recurrences of the above-described injuries. Plaintiff experienced cxireine and severe
mental anguish and emotional distress that Plaintiff had been the victim of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500's fraud; that Plaintiff had not becn ablc to
help other minors being molested because of the fraud, and that Plaintiff had not been able, because
of the fraud, to receive timely medical treatment necded to deal with thc problems Plaiti(f has
suffered and continues to suffer as 4 result of the sexual harassment, molestatien and abuse of ALY
RAISMAN.

126. In subjecting ALY RAISMAN to the wrongful treatment herein described,
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 acted willfully and
maliciously with the intent (o harm Plaintift, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights, so as
to constitutc malicc and/or oppression under Califomia Civit Code scction 3294. Plaintitt is
informed, and on that basjs, allcge that these willful, malicious, and/or oppressive acts, as alleged
hercin above, were ratiticd by the ofticers, dircctors, and/or managing agents of thesc Defendants.

Plaimiff is tberctore culitled to recover punitive daimages, in an amount to be determined hy the
cout , apainst Defendamts USOC, USAG, PENNY and DOES 1 through S00.
SEYE A LOF
NEGLIGENCE
i ISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY. PARILLA, and
DOES 1 throueh 500)

127.  Plaintiff re alleges and incorporatcs by rcfercnce herent cach and every allegation
contained berein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

128, Prior to and after the first incident of thc Perpetrator’s (NASSAR) sexual
harassment, molestation and abuse of Plaintiff, throngh the present, Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY. PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, knew and/or should havc known that the
Perpetrator (NASSAR) had and was capable of scxually, physically, and mentally abustng and
harassing Plaintiff or other victims.

129.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY. PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 and

each of them had special duties to protcct the minor Plaintiff and the other participants and

- -39-
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members, when such minors were entrusted to Defendants USOC:, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA,
and DOES 1} through 500's carc by their parents. Plaintiff's care, welfare and physical custody was
entrusted to Defendants USOC and DOES | through 500. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 voluntanly accepted the entrusted care of Plaintiff. As such,
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 o wed Plantiff, a minor
child, a special duty of care that adults dealing with children owe to protect them from harm. The
duty to protect and wam arose from the special, trusting, confidential, and fiduciary relationship
between Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 and Plaintiff.

130. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500
breached their duties of care to the minor Plainti ff by allowing the Perpetrator (NASSAR) to come
into contact with the minor Plaintiff and other participants and members, without supervision; by
failing to adequately hire. supervise and retain the Perpetrator (NASSAR) whom they pemmitted
and cnabled to have access to Plamnti(l; by concealing om Plaintiff, her family, and law
enforcement that the Perpetrator (NASSAR) was sexually harassing, molesting and abusing
winors: and by holding the Perpetrator NASSAR) out to Plaintiff and her family a3 being of high

moral and cthical repute, in good standing and trustworthy.

131.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500
breached their duties to Plaintiff by failing to investigate or otherwise confirm or deny such facts
of sexual abuse by the Perpetrator (NASSAR), failing to reveal such facts to Plaintif(, her parents,
the comnnunity and law enforcement agencices, and by placing the Perpetrator (NASSAR) into a

position of trust and authority, holding hum out to Plaintiff, her parents, and the public as being in

good standing and trustworthy,
132. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500

brcached their duty to Plaintiff by failing to adequately monitor and supervise the Pcrpetrator
(NASSAR) and failing to prevent the Perpetrator (NASSAR) from committing wrongful sexual
acts with minors including Plaintift. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES

| through 500’s voluminous past records of sexual misconduct by the Perpetrator (NASSAR)

caused Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 to know, or

-40-
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gave them information where they should have known, of the Perpetrator's (NASSAR) incapacity
to serve as 4 team physician, providing for the physical carc of minor females.

133.  As aresull of the above-described conduct, Plaint:ff has suttered and continues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of cmotional
distress including embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations, and loss of
enjoyment of lifc; has suffcred and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to he
prevented from pertorming daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain

loss of canings and caming capacity, and has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counsehng.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
NEGLIGENT SUPFRVISION
(Plaintiit ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and
DOES 1 through S00)

134.  Plaintift rc-alleges and incorporates by reference herein cach and every allegation

containal haein ablove as though fully sct furth and brought in this cause of action.

135 Ny virtne of Taintiffs special relationship with Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PPARILLA, and DOLS 1 through 500, and Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES | through 500's relation to the Perpetralor (NASSAR), Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through S00 owed Plaintiff a duty to provide rcasonable
supervision of the Perpetrator (NASSAR), to usc reasonable care in investigating the Perpetrator’s
(NASSAR) background, and to providc adcquatc warning to Plaintiff, Plaintiff's family, and minor
participants and members of the Perpetrator’'s (NASS AR) dangerous propensities and unfitness.
As organizations and individuals responsible for, and entrusted with, the welfare of minor children,
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARIL1LA, and DOES ! through 500 had a duty to protect,
supervise, and monitor both the Plaintiff from being preyed upon by scxuval predators, and to
supervise and monitor the Perpetrator (NASSAR) such that he would not he placed in seclusion

with minor children, including the Plaintift.

136.  As representatives of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES
1 through 500, where many of the participants and members thercof are vulnerable minors

entrusted to these Detendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500, these

A
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Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's agents expressty and
implicitly represented that team physicians and staff, including the Perpetrator (NASSAR), were
not a sexual threat to children and others who would fall under the Perpetrator’s (NASSAR)

influence, control, direction, and care.

137. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500, by and
through their respective agents. servants and cmployces, kncw or shonld have known of the
Papettator’s (NASSAR) daugerous and exploilive  propensities and  that the Perpetraior
(NASSAR) wis an unfir agent. Despite such knowledge, Defendants USOU, USAG, PENNY,

PARILL A, und DOES | through SO0 riegligently failed to supervise the Paerpatrator (NASSAR) in

hig position of trust and nuthority os a tcam physician and authority figucc over children, where he

wan able to comgut wrongtul acts of soaual Juiscopduact agdinst Plainare Daerendants UISOC,

UISAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ( through 500 tuiled to provide rcasonable supcivisivin of
the Porpelralor (NASSAR), failead to usc reasonable care in invearigating the Perpetrator
(NASSAR), and failed w0 provide adequate warning to laintift and Pluintiffs family of the
Pempetrator’s (NASSAR) dangerous propencities ond unfitness. Dotenduniy IJSOC, USAGQG,
PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ] through S00 further failed to take reasomiable steps to ensure the
cafety of minory, including Dlaiotiff, flour sexual haraggment, molestation, und abuse.

13%. At no time during the periods of tima alleged did Defenduats USOC, USAG,
PENNY. PARILLA. and DOES 1 through S00 have in place a reasonahlc systeim ur procedure 1o
mvestipate. supervise and monitor the team physician or stulf, iucluding the Perpetrator
(NASSAR), to prevent pre-sexual grooming and sexual harassment, molestation and abusc of
childreg, nor did they implement a system or procedure to oversee or monitor conduct toward
minors and others in Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's
care.

139, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES ! through 500 were
awarc or should have been aware of how vulnerable children were to sexual harassment,

molestation and abuse by teachers and other persons of authority within Defendants USOC and

DOES 1 through 500°s eatities.
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1 140. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were

2 |[ put on notice, knew and/or should have known that the Perpetralor (NASSAR) had previously

¢ m unlawful sexual conduct with minors, and had comntted

3 engaged and was conlinuing to engag

4 other [elonies, for his own personal sexual gratification, and that it was foreseeable that he was

inillici iviti i int) nder the cloak of
S engaging, or would engage in illicit scxual activities with Plainti ff, and others, u

H 1 . Q Q
§) the authoritv. confidence, and trust, bestowed upon him through Defendants USOC, USAG,

7 FENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 througt: 500.
8 141. Pctendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, und DOES 1 fluouuli 500 weie
0 placed on aclual or constructive notice that the Perpetrator (NASSAR) had maolested ather minnrs

](_)I and participants and mcmbers during his emplavinend wilh Defandants 1ISOC nad DOES |

11 thraugh S0N Dafandanta T1SO(C, YISACG, PENNY, PARITT A, and NOES 1 thraupgh SO0 weara

; .2 12]|| intormed of molestations ot ininors committed by the Perpetrator (NASSAR) prior to Plaintitf¢
‘4 ; 13||| sexual abuse. and of conduct by the Perpetrator (NASSAR) that would put a reasnnable person on
E’Z % 149 notice of such propeusity (o molest and abusce children.
é 5 15 142 Lvon hough Dufendants UDOC. USAU, FENINY, PARILLA, and TXO”R.S 1 through
; i: 16 500 knew or shanld have known of these illicit sexual activitien by the Perpetrator (NASSAR),
53. 17]|] Defiudants USOG. UISACH PENNY, PARILLA, and )OS 1 through S00 did not rcasonably
18 investigale, supervise or monitor the Perpetrator (NASSAR) to ensure the xaletv of the minor
10 participanta annd mcmbers.
20 143, Dcfendauts USOC, USACG, PENNY, PARILLA. and DOES 1 thranghh 500
21 conduct was a breach of theu duties to Plaintiff,
22 |/ 144, Defendants USOC, USAG, I'LNNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, and
23

cach of them, breached iheir duty to Plamtittby, inter alia, by failing 1o adequately monitor and

i supervise the Perpetrator (NASSAR) and stop the Perpetrator (NASSAR) from committing
25 ' wrongful sexual acts with minors including Plaintu(T.

20 145 As aresult of the above-described conduct, PlaintifT has suffered and continues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional

distress including cmbarrassment, toss of scif-esteetn, disgracc, humiliations, and loss of

it
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enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be
prevented [fom performing daily activitics and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
loss of carnings and caming capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.

NEGLIGENCE PER SE-CONDUCT IN VIOLATION OF MANDATED REPORTING
LAWS

146. Under applicable law, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES

1 through 500, by and through their employees and agents, were child care custodians and were
undor a duty to roport known or suspected incidents of sexual molestation oc¢ abuse of iminors o a
child protective agency, and not 10 impede the filing of any such report.

147, Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 knew

or should have known that thcir team physician, the Perpetrator (NASSAR), ond other staff of
Dofendants USOC, ULAG, and DOLG 1 thaough 500, had scaually mulestud, abused or causexl
touching, battery, hanmn, and/or other injuries to mmors, including Plainn((; giving rise to a dugy 1o
report such conduct.

148.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOERS 1 through S00 kncw.
vt shivuld llave known, in the excrcise of reasonahle dfligence, that an undue nsk to minors.

including Plaintiff, existcd beemuse Nefendants USOC, USAQG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES |
throngh SO0 did not comply with California's mandatory reporting requirements.

149. By failing ta repant the continuing molestations and abusc by the Perpetratog

(NANKAR), which Defandnnte 1IQAD, TISAGQ, PENNY, PARILLA, nnd LOLYS 1 tlhuouxh 300
knew U1 should bave known about, and by ignoting the fulfillment of the mandated compliance
with the reporting requirements, Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1|
through 500 created the risk and danger contemplatcd by the applicable mandated reporting laws,
and as a result, unreasonably and wrongfully exposed Plaintiff and other minors to scxual
molestation and abuse.

I50.  Plaintiff wax a member of the class of persons for whose protection applicable

mandatcd reporting laws were specifically adopted to protect.

-44.
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151. Had Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500

adequalely reported the molestation of Plaintiff and other minors as required by applicable

mandated reporting laws, further harm to Plaintiff and other minors wonld have been avoided.

159. As a proximate result of Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and
MOES 1 through 500's failure Lo follow the mandatory reporting requirements, Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 wrongfully denied Plaintiff and other

minors the intervention of child protection services. Such public agencies would have changed the
then-cxisting arrangements and conditions that provided the access and oppuriunibies lor the
molesintion of Plaiatiff by the Perperrator (NASSAR).

153. The physical. mental. and emotional damages and injuries resulting trom the sexual
molestation of rlaindff by the Porporeatar (MNASSAIL), waere the type of vecurrence and injuries
that the npplu'nhln mandated reporting laws were designed to prevent.

154. As a resnlt, Nefendants USOIC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through
500 failurc to comply with the mandatory reporting requirciments constitutead s pen s broach of
Defeodunts UUSOC. USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 throuph SO0 duties to FlaintifY.

t5s. Defeadnnt:s USOC, USAG. I'TININY, FARILLA, ciud DOES 1 throuysh SO0, ana
acnctr of thamn, breached their duty o Plaintff by, inter slin, by failing to adequulely monitor and
supcrvise the Paipelrator (NASSAR) and stop the Perpetrutor (NASSAR) ficim commuitting
wrongful scxual acts witliininurs inclading Plainriff,

156, As a result of the above-desceribed conduct, Plaintifl has suffered and continacs tn
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, cmotional distress. phiysical manifestations of ernotional
distrace including  cwibuamrassmient, loxx of scif-cstcau, disgrace, humiltations, and lase of
cnjoyment of life; hns sutlered and continues to suffer and waa prevented and will continuc to be

prevented from pertoriuing dally activities and obtaining the full cnjoyment uf life; will sustain
loss of earni i i i i i i

mings and eaming capacity, and/or has incurred and will continuc to incur expenses for
medical and psycholugical treatment, therapy, and counscling,

NEGI?%EH CAUSE OF ACTION
o GENT HIRING/RETENTION
(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG. PENN
{ 3. PENNY.
DOES 1 through 500) NG PARILLA, and

-45-
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157.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporatcs by scference herein each and every allegation
coatained herein abovce as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

158. By virtue of Plaintiff's special relationship with Defendants USOC, USAG,
PENNY, PARILL.A, and DOES ! through 500, and Defendints USOC, UGSAG, PENNY,
PARIILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's rclation to the Perpetrator NASSAR), Defendants USQC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owed Plaintiff a duty to not hire or retain
the Perpetrator (NASSAR), given his dangerous and exploitive propensities, which Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 knew or should have known about

had they engaged in a reasonablc, meaningful and adcquate investigation of her background priot

_to her hiring or retaining her in subscquent positions of employment.

159. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES { through 500
expressly and implicitly represented that the team staff, trainers, and team physicians, including
the Perpetrator (NASSAR), were not a sexual threat to children and others who would fall under
the Perpetrator’s (NASSAR) influence, control, direction, and guidance.

160. At no time during the peiivds of time alleged did Defendants USOC, LISA(],
PENNY, PARILLA, and NOES 1 through 500 have in place a reasonable system ar procedure to

investigate, supervisc and monitor team staff, trainers, and teama physicians, including the

r’crpctmlor (NASSAK), LO prevent pre-sexual proorming or sexual hurassiment, nsolestation and

abuse of children, nor did they implement a system or procedure to oversee or monitor conduct
toward minors, participants and meinbers and others in Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY,
PARILLA, and DOES ] through 500's care.

161. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were
aware or should have been aware and understand how vulnerable children were to sexual
harassment, molestation and abuse by teachers and other persons of authority within the control of
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 3500 prior to Plaintif{’s
sexual abuse by the Pempetrator (NASSAR).

162.  Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were

put on notice, and should have known that the Perpetrator (NASSAR) had previously engaged and

4.
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continued to engage in unlawful sexual conduct with minors and was comunitting other felonics,
for his own personal gratification, and that )t was, or should have known it would have been
foreseeable that he was engaging, or would engage in illicit sexual activities with Plaintiff, and
others, under the cloak of his authority, confidence, and trust, bestowed upon ber through
Defendauts USOC, JSAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through S00.

163. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 were
placed on actual or constructive notice that the Perpetratot (NASSAR) had molested or was
molesting ninors and participants and members, both before his employment withio Defendants
USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 througly 500, and duting thal ciuployment
Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500 had knowledge of
inappropriate conduct and molestations cornmitted by the Perpetrator (NASSAR) before and

during his employment, yel chose to allow hitn to ramain unsupervised where she sexually abused

Plaintiff.
164.  Eventhough Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through

500 knew or should have known of these scxuaily illicit activities by the Perpetrator (NASSAR),
Dcfendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOLES 1 through 500 failed to use reasonable
carc in investigating the Perpctrator (NASSAR) and did nothing to rcasonably investigate,
supervise or monitor the Perpetrator (NASSAR) to ensire the safety of the: minor participants and
members.

165. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500's
conducl was a breach of their duties to Plaintiff.

166. As aresult of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered and continues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, cmotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional
distress including cmbarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations. and loss of
enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be
prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
loss of eamings and earning capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counseling.
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TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
NEGLIGENT FATILURE TO WARN, TRAIN, or EDUCATE
Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against Defendants USOC, USAG. PENNY, PARILLA., a

DOES 1 through 500

167. Plaintitt re-alleges and incorporates by reference herein each and cvery allegation
contained herein above as though fully set forth and brought in this cause of action.

168. Defendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES 1 through 500 owexl
Plaintiff a duty to take reasonable protective measures to protect Plaintiff and other minor
participants and members from the risk of childhood sexual harassment, molestation and abuse by
the Perpetrator (NASSAR) by properly warmning, training or educating Plaintiff and other about

how 0 avoid such a risk.

169. Dctendants USOC, USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, aud DOES 1 through 500

Lreached their duty 10 ke reusvuublo protective mecasures to protect Plaintiff and ather minor
panticipants and meuibas (ivm the risk of childhood scexual haragament, molestation and abuse by

the Perpetralor INASS AR), such as the failure (o properly waun, train or cducate Plaintift and other

minor participants and members abont how (o avoid sucli a paticalar risk that the Perpetrator

(NASSAR) posed—of sexual misconduct.

170. Dectendants USOC, LISACG, PENNYV, PARIILI.A, and DOES 1 through $00
breached their duly v tuke jeassouable protective measurcs to protect Plaintitt aod other minor
participanrs and members from the risk of childhood scauval Liacassiment, molestation and abusc by
the Perpetrator (NASSAR), by fajling 10 supervise and stop cmployees of Defendants USOC,
USAG, PENNY, PARILLA, and DOES | through 500, including the Perpetrator (NASSAR), from
cammitting wrongfirl sexual acts with minors, including Plainti ff,

171.  As a result of the above-described conduct, Plaintiff has suffered and contijnues to
suffer great pain of mind and body, shock, emotional distress, physical manifestations of emotional
distress including embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, disgrace, humiliations. and loss of
enjoyment of life; has suffered and continues to suffer and was prevented and will continue to be
prevented from performing daily activities and obtaining the full enjoyment of life; will sustain
loss of camings and earning capacity, and/or has incurred and will continue to incur expenses for

medical and psychological treatment, therapy, and counscling.

-48-
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ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
SEXUAL BATTERY: Civil Code § 1708.5
(Plaintiff ALY RAISMAN Against DEFENDANT NASSAR)

172. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference hercin cach and every allegation
contained herein above as though fully set forth und brought in this cause of action.

173.  NASSAR, in domng the things herein alleged, including intending to subject
Plaintift to numerous instances of sexual abuse and harassment by NASSAR, during Plamtiffs
time with USAG and USOC, beginning on or around 2010 to in or around 2012, und in or around
2015, including but not Jimited to instances of NASSAR groping and fondling the Plaintift’s
vagina all whilc NASSAR acted in the course and scope of his agency/cinployment with

Defendants, and each of them and were intended to cause harmful or offensive contact with

Plaintiffs person, and did causc such banmful or offensive contact.

174. NASSAR did the aforecmentioned ucts with the intent to cavse n harmtul or
offcnsive contuct with an intimate part af Plaintill™s person. and would ottend a reasonabie scnse
uf personal dignity. Further, said acte did cause a2 harmful or oftensive contact with an intimate
part of PlaintifT s persoa that would offend a rcasonable senac of personal dignity.

175. Becausc of NASSAR s position of authority over Plaintiff, and Plainliff's mental
and cmatinnal atnte, and Plaintiffs young age under the age ol consent, Plaintitt was unable to,

and did not, give meaningful consent to such acts.
176. As a dircct. Icgal and proximate result of the acts of NASSAR, Plaintift sustained

serious and penmanent tguries o her person. all of his damage in an amournt to be shown according

to proof and within the jurisdiction of1he Court.

I77.  As a direct result of the sexual abuse by NASSAR, Plaintiff has difficulty in
reasonably or meaningfully interacting with others, including those in positions of authority over
Plaintifl” including teachers, and supervisors, and in confidential, business, and familia)
relationships, due to the trauma of childhood sexual abuse inflicted upon her by NASSAR. This
inability to interact creates conflict with Plaintiff's values of trust and confidence in others, and

has caused Plaintift substantial cmotional distress, anxiety, nervousness and fear, As a direct result

of the sexual abuse and harassment by NASSAR, Plaintiff suffered immensely, including, but not




